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his ability to determine the outcome of elections of directors, amend our charter and by-laws and take other 
actions requiring stockholder action, including mergers, going private transactions and other extraordinary 
transactions. Mr. Tose could, wnhout seeking anyone else's approval, transfer voting control of us to a third 
party. Such a transfer could have a material adverse effect on our stock price, and our business, operating 
results and financial condition. Mr. Tose is also able to prevent a change of control regardless of whether 
holders of Class A common stock might benefit finanCially from such a transaction. 

Our governIng corrorate documenta contaIn certaIn anti-takeover provIsIons that could prevent a 
change of control that may be favorable to shareholders_ 

We are a Maryland corporation. Anti-takeover provisions of Maryland law and provisions contained in our 
charter and by-laws could make it more difficutt for a third party to acquire control of us, even if a change in 
control would be beneficial to shareholders. These provisions include the following: 

• authorization of the board of directors to issue "blank check" preferred stock; 

• prohibition of cumulative voting in the election of directors; 

• our classified board of directors; 

• limitation of the persons who may call special meetings of stockholders; and 

• prohibition on stockholders acting without a meeting other than through unanimous written consent; 

• supermajority voting requirement on various charter and by-law provisions; 

• establishment of advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for 
proposing matters that can be acted on by stockholders at stockholder meetings. 

These provisions could delay, deter or prevent a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of us, 
depriving shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for Class A common stock. These provisions 
could therefore materially adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock. 

Because thIs reoorl contaIns forward-lookIng statements_ It may not prove to be accurate_ 

This report, including the documents we incorporate by reference, contains forward-looking statements 
and information relating to our company. These statements are based upon TCS' current expectations and 
assumptions that are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that would cause actual results to differ 
materially from those anticipated. We generally identify forward-looking statements using words like "believe," 
"intend," "expect," "may," "should," "plan," "project," "contemplate," "anticipate," or other similar statements. 
We base these statements on our beliefs as well as assumptions we made using information currently 
available to us. We do not undertake to update our forward-looking statements or risk factors to refiectfuture 
events or circumstances. 

Statements in this report that are forward-looking include, but are not limited to, the following statements 
that 

(i) we are well positioned to address the evolving integration needs of our clients through our expertise in 
messaging and location determination;, 

(ii) we are developing relationships with communication infrastructure providers and we intend to expand 
our domestic and international carrier base, 

(iii) we plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through 
deployment in customer networks or through hosted and subscription business models and we believe that 
our software is posnioned for early adoption by carriers, 

(iv) wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions around the world for the foreseeable 
future, 

(v) both the number of users and messages per individual are projected to increase significantly, 
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(vi) we will continue to develop network software for wireless carriers that operate on all major types of 
networks; 

(vii) we will continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology to unlock valuable 
information and expand the range of capabilities that the technology can accomplish for our customers, 

(viii) we will continue to invest in our underlying technology and to capitalize on our expertise to meet the 
growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications, 

(ix) we intend to continue to selectively pursue acquisHions of companies and technologies in order to 
increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products, services and customer base, 

(x) the Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat sateliHe constellation expands our 
opportunity for SwiftLink sales volume; 

(xi) we believe our expertise in wireless E9-1-1 , location and messaging services, and secure satellite 
communications can be leveraged into the Federal agencies; 

(xii) we are continuing to enhance our deployable communication systems product line to take advantage 
of the evolving environment of sateliHe communications; 

(xiii) we believe that our company enjoys a competitive advantage because of its secure teleport and 
integration capabilities along with deployable systems as a bundled offering; 

(xiv) federal agencies, as well as state and local governments, are increasingly contracting with specialist 
teams for functions such as network management, and for long-term projects such as software development 
and systems integration, 

(xv) we expect to realize $84.6 million of backlog within the next twelve months; 

(xvi) the bases on which we expect to continue to compete; 

(xvii) we believe we have sufficient capHaI resources to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses, 
working capital and capital expenditure and debt services needs for the next twelve months, 

(xviii) that we believe our capitalized research and development expense will be recoverable from future 
gross profits generated by the related products, 

(xix) we believe our intellectual property assets are valuable and may realized revenue from patent 
infringement claims; 

(xx) the WWSS contract is expected to contribute to significant sales growth, 

(xxi) expectations about the amount of future non-cash stock compensation, and 

(xxii) statements about financial covenants related to our loan agreements. 

This list should not be considered exhaustive. 

Item 1 B. Unresolved Stsff Comments 

None. 

Item 2. PropertIes 

Our principal executive office is located in Annapolis, Maryland in a 27,000 square foot facility under a 
lease expiring in March 2008. We have a second 26,000 square foot facilHy in Annapolis, Maryland under a 
lease expiring in April 2008. We are currently negotiating extension of our lease terms. The Annapolis 
facilities are utilized for the executive and administrative offices, as well as portions of our Commercial and 
Government Segments. Other leased facilities include a 47,500 square foot facility in Seattle, Washington 
under a lease expiring in September 2010, an 11,000 square foot facility in Oakland, California under a lease 
expiring August 2012, and a 32,000 flex-space facility in Tampa, Florida under a lease expiring in December 
2015. We also lease 
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a hosting facility in Phoenix, Arizona under a lease that expires in February 2010, which is utilized by our 
Commercial Segment. 

In addition to the leased office space, we own a 7-acre teleport facility in Manassas, Virginia, and lease 
space in BaHimore, Maryland for teleport services for our Government Segment customers. 

Item 3. Legsl Proceedings 

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers 
and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial public offering (the 
"Underwriters'): Highstein v. Telecommunication Systems, Inc., et al., United States District Court for the 
Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of 
damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common 
Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters 
agreed to allocate our Class A Common Stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain 
purchasers in exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to 
make additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The 
plaintiffs allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the SecurHies Act, and that the 
underwriters violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims 
against us of violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed wHh the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On 
February 15, 2005, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among 
class plaintiffs, all issuer defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification 
narrowing the scope of the bar order set forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a 
modification narrowing the scope of the bar order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order 
preliminarily approving the settlement. On December 5, 2006, the United States Court of Appeals for the 
Second Circuit overturned the District Court's certification of the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims 
that would be settled in the settlement against the underwrHer defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for 
Rehearing and Rehearing En Bane wHh the Second Circuit on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second 
CircuH's decision, and have informed the District Court that they would like to be heard by the District Court as 
to whether the settlement may still be approved even if the decision of the Court of Appeals is not reversed. 
The District Court indicated that it would defer consideration of final approval of the settlement pending 
plaintiffs' request for further appellate review. We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the settlement 
has received final approval or the matter is resolved otherwise. More than 300 other companies have been 
named in nearly identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the same law firms that represent the 
plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us, and we believe that the majority of those companies will participate in the 
same settlement if approved. 

On July 12, 2006, we filed suit in the US District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against Mobile 
365 (now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement related 
to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only 
Experience, issued to the Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan Americas, and during 
the second quarter of 2007 we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365 infringed the claims of our 
patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $10 million for past damages and a 
12% royalty. The jury also found Sybase 365's infringement willful and upheld the validity of the patent. The 
jury's findings remain subject to post trial motions. After the judge rules on the post trial motions, eHher side 
may appeal to the US Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. There can be no assurances to what extent the 
matter will continue to be successful, if at all. AddHionally, we could be subject to counter claims. 

In October 2006, two former shareholders of Xypoint Corporation sued the former officers and directors of 
that corporation for breach of fiduciary duty and violation of certain Washington state securHies and consumer 
protection acts when they approved, and recommended that shareholders approve, the merger of Xypoint into 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. The plaintiffs request unspecified damages. The merger agreement from 
2001 provided that we would indemnify the officers and directors of Xypoint for a period of six years after the 
merger (ending January 2007) for their actions in approving the merger. In December 2006, the complaint 
was amended to include TCS and Windward Acquisition Corporation (our acquisition subsidiary), an 
extinguished corporation, as defendant. On May 7, 2007, the Honorable Jeffrey M. Ramsdell olthe King 
County Superior Court (Washington) 
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entered an order dismissing the complaint, with prejudice. On October 19, 2007, the plaintiffs filed an appeal 
of the dismissal order with the Washington Court of Appeals. The briefing on plaintiffs appeal is completed, 
but no date has been set for the appeal hearing. We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit vigorously. We 
have purchased Directors and Officers insurance policies to cover claims against the former officers and 
directors of Xypoint and us, and believe that one or more of those insurance policies may cover some or all of 
the costs of this lawsuit. On January 4, 2008, we filed sutt in the King County Superior Court (Washington) 
against Great American Insurance Company for the costs we have incurred In defending the suit and any 
potential settlement or judgment. There can be no assurances that the outcome will be favorable to us or that 
the insurance policies will be sufficient to cover the costs incurred or any settlement or judgment that may 
result. 

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material legal 
proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the 
ordinary course of our business. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

None. 

Part " 

Item 5. Market for Reqlstrant's Common Equity. Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of 
Equity Securities 

Our Class A Common Stock has been traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol ''TSYS'' 
since our initial public offering on August 8, 2000. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the 
high and low clOSing prices for our Class A Common Stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market: 

_High Low 

2008 
First Quarter 2008 (through February 25, 2008) $ 3.94 $ 3.09 
2007 
First Quarter 2007 $ 3.92 $ 2.99 
Second Quarter 2007 $ 5.75 $ 3.86 
Third Quarter 2007 $ 5.21 $ 3.45 
Fourth Quarter 2007 $ 4.55 $ 3.02 
2006 
First Quarter 2006 $ 2.56 $ 2.00 
Second Quarter 2006 $ 3.26 $ 2.23 
Third Quarter 2006 $ 2.83 $ 2.03 
Fourth Quarter 2006 $ 3.58 $ 2.66 

As of February 5, 2008, there were approximately 295 holders of record of our Class A Common Stock, 
and there were 8 holders of record of our Class B Common Stock. 

Dividend Policy 

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any 
Mure earnings to fund the development, growth and operation of our business. Additionally, under the terms 
of our loan arrangements, our lender's prior written consent is required to pay cash dividends on our common 
stock. We do not currently anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable 
Mure. 

Change in Securities and Use of Proceeds 

On January 13, 2004, we closed on $21 million of financing with two accredited institutional investors, 
which included a subordinated convertible debenture with stated principal of $15 million, bearing interest at a 
stated rate of 3% per annum and due in lump sum on January 13, 2009 (the "Debenture'), 1,364,288 newly 
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issued shares of Class A Common Slack and warrants to purchase 341,072 shares of Class A Common 
Stock at a strike price of $6.50 expiring in January 2007. The proceeds were used for acquisition of an 
Enterprise division from Aether Systems, Inc. ("Enterprise Acquis~ion'1 The Debenture provided for an original 
conversion price of $5.38 per share, subject to adjustment. The Debenture was converted into shares of 
Class A Commons Stock in December 2004. The warrants issued in the January 2004 financing described 
above contained provisions requiring an adjustment in both the warrant price and the number of warrants 
outstanding as a consequence of the issuance of the new warrants in March 2006. Consequently, the 
warrants from 2004 were adjusted to a purchase price of $2.50 per share and the total number of January 
2004 warrants outstanding was adjusted to 886,787. In January 2007, the holders of the warrants issued in 
2004 exercised those warrants and 886,787 shares were issued. 

On March 10, 2006, pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated the same date, we issued and sold to 
two institutional lenders (i) $10 million in aggregate principal amount of secured notes due March 10, 2009, 
which bore cash interest at the rate of 14% per annum, or non-cash Interest, in the form of add~ional notes, at 
the rate of 16% per annum, at our option, and (ii) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of 
our Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per share. We received net cash proceeds of 
approximately $9.3 million from this transaction, which were used for general corporate purposes. 

The consummation of the note purchase agreement and the issuance of notes and warrants thereunder 
were conducted as a private placement made to accredited investors in a transaction exempt from the 
registration requirements of the Secur~ies Act. 

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced the $10 million of secured notes with a five year bank term loan. The 
borrowing rate under the new term loan is the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (7.5% at December 31, 
2007) and the loan is repayable in equal monthly installments of $0.2 million plus interest. The funds were 
used primarily to retire the March 2006 secured notes. 

With the exception of the notes and warrants issued in March 2006, all of the other secur~ies issued by us 
in connection w~h these transactions have been registered under the Securnies Act. 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

None. 
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Stock Performance Graph 

The following graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company's Class A Common 
Stock wHh the cumulative total return of the Nasdaq Global Market U.S. Index and a mobile data index 
prepared by the company of the following relevant publicly traded companies in the commercial and 
government sectors in which we operate: Openwave Systems, Inc.; Sybase, Inc.; Comverse Technology Inc.; 
Globecomm Systems Inc.; NCI Inc.; NeuStar, Inc.; Syniverse Holdings, Inc.; and VlaSat Inc. (the "New Peer 
Group") 

The composition of the Mobile Data Index has been changed from last year (the "Old Peer Group') as 
follows: Infospace, Inc. sold H's mobile services business to Motricity, Inc., in 2007; and Mapinfo Corp. was 
purchased by Pitney Bowes in 2007. Both companies were removed from the index. ViaSat Inc. was added to 
the remaining companies to comprise the "New Peer Group" because its sateliHe services business is 
comparable to our Government Segment business. 

The information provided is from January 1,2001 through December 31,2007. The graph for the "Old 
Peer Group" may not be meaningful because there is no 2007 data available for companies which are no 
longer publicly traded and the data for the remaining companies in the "Old Peer Group" therefore may not be 
comparably balanced for 2007 when compared to prior years. 

This performance graph shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or 
incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except 
as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing. The stock price performance shown on the 
graph below is not necessarily indicative of future price performance. 
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Item 6. Selected FinancIal Data 

The table that follows presents portions of our consolidated financial statements. You should read the 
following selected financial data together with our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and related 
notes and with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial CondHion and Results of Operations" 
and the more complete financial information included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We have derived the 
statement of operations data for the years ended December 31,2007,2006, and 2005 and the balance sheet 
data as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 from our consolidated financial statements which have been audited 
by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, and which are included in Item 15 of 
this Form 10-K. We have derived the statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2004 
and 2003 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, from our audHed financial 
statements which are not included in this Form 10-K. The historical results presented below are not 
necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future fiscal year. See "Management's Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." As a resutt of implementation of 
SFAS 123(R), our non-cash stock compensation expense has been allocated to direct cost of revenue, 
research and development expense, sales and marketing expense, and general and administrative expense 
in our continuing operations as well as discontinued operations as detailed in Note 2 to the audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Year Ended December 31, 
2007 2006 ~ 2004 2003 

(in millions, except share and per share data) 

Statement of Operations Data: 
Revenue 

Services $ 88.1 $ 88.4 $ 75.0 $ 60.2 $ 51.6 
Systems 56.1 36.6 . _ 27.2 36.7 40.5 

Total revenue 144.2 124.9 102.2 96.9 92.1 
.--

Direct cost of services revenue 52.2 52.5 39.2 30.9 28.0 
Direct cost of systems revenue 37.9 H.~ 17.7 21.2 32.3 

Total direct cost of revenue 90.1 70.4 ._- __ 56.9 52.1 60.2 

Services gross profit 35.9 35.B 35.B 29.3 23.6 
Systems gross profit __ 1 !Ie:! lB.7 __ 9 .. 5 15.5 B.2 

Total gross profit __ 54.J 54.5 45.2 44.B 31.B 

Research and development expense 13.1 12.6 13.9 lB.l 17.2 
Sales and marketing expense 11.9 11.7 10.5 9.0 9.1 
General and administrative expense 19.3 17.0 15.0 15.0 12.3 
Depreciation and amortization of property 

and equipment 6.2 B.O B.6 7.4 6.6 
Amortization of goodwill and other 

intangible assets 0.1 _O.J. 0.1 0.5 
------- ---

Total operating costs and expenses 50.6 49.3 4B.2 49.6 45.7 

Income (loss) from operations 3.5 5.2 (3.0) (4.B) (13.9) 
Interest expense (I.B) (I.B) (0.7) (3.2) (1.1 ) 
Amortization of debt discount and debt 

issuance expenses, including $2,45B 
write-off in 2007 (3.2) (1.4) (0.5) 

Debt conversion expense (7.9) 
Other (expense)/income, net 0.5 (0.1) 1.5 

Income (loss) from continuing operations (1.0) 2.0 (4.3) (15.9) (13.5) 
Loss from discontinued operations (0.3) _ (23.7) (7.2) (2.6) ------

Net loss i (1.3) $ (21.7) $ (11.5) $ (18.5) $ (13.5) 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
per share $ (0.02) $ 0.05 $ (0.11 ) $ (0.4B) $ (0.45) 

Loss from discontinued operations per 
share (9·01) _ (0.60) (O·lID _(O.OB) 

Net loss per share - basic $ (0.03) $ (0.55) $ (0.30) $ (0.56) $ (0.45) 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
per share $ (0.02) $ 0.05 $ (0.11 ) $ (0.4B) $ (0.45) 

Loss from discontinued operations per 
share (0.01) (0.59) (0.19) (O~Q.B) ------ -- --

Net loss per share - diluted $ (0.03) $ (0.54) $ (0.30) $ (0.56) $ (0.45) 
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As of Dece~~_~r 31, 
2007 2006 2005 2(J04 _ 2003 

(In millions) 

Balance Sheet Data: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16.0 $ 10.4 $ 9.3 $ 18.3 $ 18.9 
Working capital 35.0 25.4 27.5 20.2 28.5 
Total assets 82.1 83.6 90.6 102.4 65.3 
CapHal leases and long-term debt (including current 

portion) 16.1 17.6 16.5 18.4 14.6 
Total liabilities 38.2 48.6 41.5 42.9 28.4 
Total stockholders' equity 44.0 35.1 49.1 59.5 36.9 

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Ana/vsls of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations addresses our 
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going 
basis, management evaluates its estimates and judgments. Our most significant estimates relate to 
accounting for our percentage-of-completion and proportional performance contracts, accounts receivable 
reserves, inventory value, evaluating goodwill for impairment, the realizabliHy and remaining useful lives of 
long-lived assets, and contingent liabilities. Management bases Hs estimates and judgments on historical 
experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the Circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilHies that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different 
assumptions or conditions. 

We identified our most critical accounting policies to be those related to revenue recognition for our 
contracts wHh muHiple elements, revenue recognition for our contracts accounted for using the 
percentage-of-completion and proportional performance methods, capitalized software development costs, 
acquired intangible assets, goodwill impairment, stock compensation expense, and income taxes. We 
describe these accounting policies in relevant sections ollhis discussion and analysis. This discussion and 
analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included 
elsewhere in this report. 

Overview and Recent Developments 

We operate two business segments: (i) our Commercial Segment, which consists principally of enhanced 
communication services to and from wireless phones, location application software, our E9-1-1 application 
and other hosted services for wireless carriers and Voice Over IP service providers, and (ii) our Government 
Segment, which includes the design, development and deployment of information processing and 
communication systems and related services to government agencies. 

During 2005 and 2004, we operated three business unHs comprising an Enterprise division which was part 
of our Commercial Segment. As of December 31 , 2005, as a resutt of management's strategic decision to 
focus on our carrier and government markets, we committed to a plan to sell the Enterprise division. Two of 
the unHs were subscriber businesses, which sold BlackBerry® services and provided real-time financial 
market data to wireless device users under annual subscriber contracts in the U.S. and Europe, and a 
wireless data solutions for mobile asset management business. The two subscriber business unHs were sold 
effective January 1, 2007 to two different buyers, as more fully described in Note 2 - Enterprise 
Assets-Discontinued Operations to the Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The third unit was sold in May 2007. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and 
results of operations for the Enterprise assets have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods 
presented in the Consolidated Rnancial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
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This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations provides 
information that our management believes to be necessary to achieve a clear understanding of our financial 
statements and results of operations. 

Our management mon~ors and analyzes a number of performance indicators in order to manage our 
business and evaluate our financial and operating performance. Those indicators include: 

• Revenue and gross profit. We derive revenue from the sales of systems and services including recurring 
monthly service and subscriber fees, software licenses and related service fees for the design, 
development, and deployment of software and communication systems, and products and services 
derived from the delivery of information processing and communication systems to governmental 
agencies. 

• Gross profit represents revenue minus direct cost of revenue, including certain non-cash expenses. The 
major ~ems comprising our cost of revenue are compensation and benefits, third-party hardware and 
software, amortization of software development costs, non-cash stock-based compensation, and 
overhead expenses. The costs of hardware and third-party software are primarily associated with the 
delivery of systems, and fluctuate from period to period as a result of the relative volume, mix of projects, 
level of service support required and the complexity of customized products and services delivered. 
Amortization of software development costs, including acquired technology, is associated with the 
recognition of systems revenue from our Commercial Segment. 

• Operating expenses. Our operating expenses are primarily compensation and benefits, professional 
fees, facil~ costs, marketing and sales-related expenses, and travel costs as well as certain non-cash 
expenses such as non-cash stock compensation expense, depreciation and amortization of property and 
equipment, and amortization of acquired intangible assets. 

• Liquidity and cash flows. The primary driver of our cash flows is the results of our operations. Important 
other sources of our liquid~ have been cash raised from our 2007 debt refinanCing as described below 
under "Liquid~ and Capital Resources", borrowings under our bank credit agreement, and lease 
financings secured for the purchase of equipment. 

• Balance sheet. We view cash, working cap~l, and accounts receivable balances and days revenues 
outstanding as important indicators of our financial heaHh. 

31 

12/10/2008 3 :28 I 



e10vk 

37of87 

htlp://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1111665/00009501330800 

Results of Operations 

Revenue and Cost of Revenue 

The following discussion addresses the revenue and cost of revenue for the two segments of our 
business. For information regarding the results of the Enterprise assets, see Discontinued Operations -
Enterprise assets below. 

Commercial Segment: 

2007v8. 2006V8. 

-~ 2005 
($ In millions) -~! 2006 _L " 2005 _$- " 
Services revenue $ 58.8 $ 59.7 $ (0.9) (2)% $ 54.2 $ 5.5 10% 
Systems revenue 16.5 17.2 -~ (4)% 11.7 5.5 

Total Commercial Segment revenue 75.3 77.0 ~ (2)% 85.9 11.1 
Direct cost of services 29.4 31.4 (2.0) (6)% 25.9 5.5 
Direct cost of systems 5.0 5.2 _~2) (4)% 5.7 ---«>,9) 

Total Commercial Segment cost of 
revenue 34.4 36.6 ~ (6)% 31.6 5.0 

Services gross profit 29.4 28.3 1.1 4% 28.3 
Systems gross profit 11.5 12.0 __ (0.5) (4)% 6.0 6.0 

Total Commercial Segment gross profit* $ 40.9 $ 40.3 $ 0.6 1% $ 34.3 $ 6.0 

Segment gross profit as a percent of 
revenue 54% 52% 52% 

• See discussion of segment reporting in Note 20 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. (NM = Not meaningful) 

Commercial Services Revenue and Cost of Revenue: 

47% 
17% 
21% 
(9)% 

16% 

NM 
100% 

18% 

Our hosted offerings include our E9-1-1 service for wireless and Voice Over IP service providers, hosted 
Position Determining Entity (PDE) service, and hosted Location Based Service (LBS) applications. Revenue 
from these offerings primarily consists of monthly recurring service fees and is recognized in the month 
earned. E9-1-1, PDE, VolP and hosted LBS service fees are priced based on units served during the period, 
such as the number of customer cell sites served, the number of connections to Public Service Answering 
Points (PSAPs), or the number of customer subscribers served. In 2006, we expedHed deployment of 
connections to PSAPs for VolP and E9-1-1 service, and continued to increase the number of carriers and 
carrier billable units served. In addition, we increased revenue from our VolP E9-1-1 and hosted LBS 
recurring services primarily due to new service contracts signed in mid-2005. These increases were partially 
offset by decreases in the average fee received per unH under pricing arrangements wHh some customers 
and the loss of a mid-tier wireless carrier customer during the third quarter of 2006. Subscriber service 
revenue is generated by client software applications for wireless subscribers such as Rand McNallyll> Traffic. 
Maintenance fees on our systems and software licenses are collected in advance and recognized ratably over 
the maintenance period. Unrecognized maintenance fees are included in deferred revenue. Custom software 
development, implementation and maintenance services may be provided under time and materials or 
fixed-fee contracts. 

Overall, commercial services revenue decreased 2% in 2007 from 2006, as the effect of decreases in 
average fees received per unit under pricing arrangements wHh some wireless E9-1-1 customers, and the 
loss of a mid-tier carrier customer in the third quarter of 2006 offset increased maintenance revenue on our 
installed software base. The 10% increase in 2006 over 2005 was due to increases in maintenance revenue 
from our installed base of commercial systems, along with an increase in revenue from E9-1-1 services to 
Voice over IP service providers, which more than offset a small decrease in revenue from E9-1-1 services to 
wireless carrier customers. 
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The direct cost of our services revenue consists primarily of network access, data feed and circuit costs, 
compensation and benefits, equipment and software maintenance. The direct cost of maintenance revenue 
consists primarily of compensation and benefits expense. For the year ended December 31,2007, the direct 
cost of services revenue decreased 6%. During 2007, we incurred less labor and direct costs related to 
custom development efforts and deployment requirements of VolP E9-1-1 infrastructure. For the year ended 
December 31, 2006, the direct cost of services revenue increased 21 %, principally because we increased 
labor and direct costs related to custom development efforts responding to customer requests and 
deployment requirements for VoIP. While we increased the number of cell sites, subscribers and public safety 
answering points (PSAPs) served, our overall circuit and data access costs were relatively consistent year to 
year. For 2007, the cost of circuit and other data access costs accounted for approximately 15% oltotal direct 
costs of hosted, subscriber, and maintenance revenues. The cost of circutt and other data access costs 
accounted for approximately 11 % and 13% of the total direct costs of our commercial hosted, subscriber, and 
maintenance revenues for 2006 and 2005 respectively. Also, $1.1 million, $0.8 million, and nil of non-cash 
stock compensation cost is included in the direct cost of commercial services revenue in 2007, 2006, and 
2005 respectively. 

Commercial services gross profit in 2007 was 4% higher than 2006 based on improved operating 
efficiencies. Commercial services gross profit in 2006 was about equal to that in 2005 ($28.3 million), as a 
slightly lower average margin offset the effect of 10% higher revenue. 

Commercial Systems Revenue and Cost of Revenue 

We sell communications systems for enhanced services, including messaging and location-based 
services, to wireless carriers. These systems are designed to incorporate our licensed software. We design 
our software to ensure that it is compliant wtth all applicable standards, including the GSM/UMTS standards 
for location-based wireless services that were established in 2005 and, as such, we believe our software is 
posttioned for early adoption by carriers. 

Licensing fees for our carrier software are generally a function of its volume of usage in our customer's 
networks. As a carrier's subscriber base or usage increases, the carrier must purchase addttional capacity 
under its license agreement and we receive addnional revenue. Systems revenues typically contain muHiple 
elements, which may include the product license, installation, integration, and hardware. The total 
arrangement fee is allocated among each Ellement based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the relative 
fair value of each of the elements. Fair value is generally determined based on the price charged when the 
element is sold separately. In the absence of evidence of fair value of a delivered element, revenue is 
allocated first to the undelivered elements based on fair value and the residual revenue to the delivered 
elements. The software licenses are generally perpetual licenses for a specified volume of usage, along with 
the purchase of annual maintenance at a specified rate. We recognize license fee revenue when each of the 
following has occurred: (1) evidence of an arrangement is in place; (2) we have delivered the software; (3) the 
fee is fixed or determinable; and (4) collection of the fee is probable. Software projects that require Significant 
customization are accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method. We measure progress to 
completion using costs incurred compared to estimated total costs or labor costs incurred compared to 
estimated total labor costs for contracts that have a Significant component of third-party materials costs. We 
recognize estimated losses under long-term contracts in their entirety upon discovery. If we did not accurately 
estimate total costs to complete a contract or do not manage our contracts within the planned budget, then 
future margins may be negatively affected or losses on existing contracts may need to be recognized. 
Software license fees billed and not recognized as revenue are included in deferred revenue. We may also 
realize license revenue as a result of infringement claims that we make in enforcing our patents. In 2006, we 
reached a settlement on a patent infringement case and won a jury award of more than $10 million in another 
infringement case; no revenue has been recognized on the second case pending post trial motions, appeals, 
and potential settlement. 

Systems revenue in 2007 was 4% lower than in 2006 due mainly to lower sales of text messaging 
capactty. Systems revenue in 2006 was 47% higher than in 2005, mainly as a result of higher messaging and 
location system license sales. The direct cost of commercial systems consists primarily of compensation, 
beneffls, purchased equipment, third-party software, travel expenses, and consulting fees as well as the 
amortization of both acquired and capitalized software development costs for all reported periods. The direct 
cost of the license 
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component of systems is normally very low, and the gross profit very high since the software development 
efforts were expensed or capitellzed in prior periods. The direct costs of systems includes amortization of 
software development costs of $1.5 million, $1.3 million, and $0.8 million, respectively, in 2007, 2006, and 
2005. 

Our commercial systems gross profit was $11.5 million in 2007, a 4% or $0.5 million decrease from 2006. 
Commercial systems gross profit was $12.0 million in 2006, more than double the $6.0 million in 2005. 
Systems gross margins are higher in periods when systems revenue includes a higher proportion of software 
licenses relative to third party system components and integration labor, as was the case In 2006. The lower 
revenue and related gross profit in 2005 was due to later than expected implementation of location-based 
service technology by wireless carriers. 

Government Segment: 

2007vs. 2008v8. 
2006 2005 

($ In millions) 2007 2006 ~-- % 2005 _$-
Services revenue $ 29.3 $ 2B.6 $ 0.7 2% $ 20.B $ 7.B 
Systems revenue 39.6 19.3 .. 20.3 105% 15.5 3.B 

Total Government Segment revenue .6B.!! 4B.0 20.9 44% 36.3 11.7 
Direct cost of services 22.B 21.1 1.7 B% 13.4 7.7 
Direct cost of systems 32.9 12.7 20.2 159% 12.0 0.7 

Total Government Segment cost of 
revenue 55.7 33.B 21.9 65% 25.4 8.4 

Services gross profit 6.5 7.5 (1.0) (13)% 7.4 0.1 
Systems gross profit 6.7 6.7 NM 3.5 3.2 

Total Government Segment gross profit* $ 13.2 $ 14.2 $ (1.0) 7% $ 10.9 $ 3.3 

Segment gross profit as a percent of 
revenue 19% 30% 30% 

• See discussion of segment reporting in Note 20 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

% 

38% 
25% 
32% 
5B% 

6% 

33% 
1% 

91% 

30% 

We provide government products and services under long-term contracts. We recognize contract revenue 
as billable costs are incurred and for fixed-price product delivery contracts using the percentage-of-completion 
method or proportional performance method, measured by eHher totellabor costs or total costs incurred 
compared to total estimated labor costs or total costs to be incurred. We recognize estimated losses on 
contracts in their entirety upon discovery. If we did not accurately estimate totel labor costs or totel costs to 
complete a contract or do not manage our contracts within the planned budget, then our future margins may 
be negatively affected or losses on existing contracts may need to be recognized. Under our contracts with 
the U.S. government, contract costs, including the allocated indirect expenses, are subject to audit and 
adjustment by the Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA). Since the company's inception, no significant 
adjustment has resu~ed from a DCAA audit. We record revenue under these contracts at estimated net 
realizable amounts. 

For 2007, Government Segment revenue increased 44% reflecting increases in both services and systems 
revenue. For 2006, Government Segment revenue increased 32% reflecting increases in both services and 
systems revenue. During the third quarter of 2006, we were one of six vendors selected by the U.S. Army to 
provide secure sateliHe services and systems under a five year contract vehicle, with a possible maximum 
value of up to $5 billion for the six vendors. This new Worldwide SateliHe Services contract vehicle is 
expected to contribute to significant government systems sales growth over the next five years. The 
company's Government Segment has been awarded participation as a prime or sub-contractor to provide 
similar sateliHe-based technology under several other contract vehicles. For the year ended December 31 , 
2007, the company was awarded 10 contracts under the WWSS vehicle with a total contract value of 
$107.5 million, of which $28.3 million was fulfilled resulting in 2007 revenue. The total backlog for this vehicle 
was $79.2 million of which $10.9 million was funded. 
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Government Services Revenue and Cost of Revenue: 

Government services revenue primarily consists of communications engineering, program management, 
help desk outsource, network design and management for government agencies. Our Government Segment 
also operates teleport facilities for data connectivity via satellite. Most such services are delivered under time 
and materials contracts. 

Government services revenue increased to $29.3 million in 2007 from $28.6 million in 2006 and 
$20.8 million in 2005. These increases in 2007 and 2006 were generated by new and expanded-scope 
contracts resutting from increased sales emphasis on communications and information technology service 
work, and increased revenue generated from satellite airtime services uSing our teleport facilities and in some 
cases associated with our systems sales. Continuing growth is expected from higher usage of our teleport 
related services and continuing incremental additions oftechnical outsource service personnel. Also, we offer 
basic and extended maintenance contracts on our systems. These maintenance fees are collected in 
advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance periods. 

Direct cost of government service revenue consists of compensation, benefits and travel incurred in 
delivering these services, and these costs increased as a result of the increased services volume in 2007 and 
2006. Also, as a result olthe implementation of SFAS 123(Rl, $0.7 million in 2007, $0.5 million in 2006, and 
nil in 2005 of non-cash stock compensation cost is included in the direct cost of revenue. 

Our gross profit from government services decreased to $6.5 million 2007, from $7.5 million in 2006, and 
$7.4 million in 2005. Despite higher revenue, gross profit declined due to the lower average margins as a 
result of tighter average pricing in 2007, and due to competition for the contracts as they were renewed or 
newly won. During 2005, our government services contract mix included some work with unusually favorable 
pricing, and similar contracts were not part olthe revenue mix in 2006 and 2007. 

Government Systems Revenue and Cost of Revenue: 

We generate government systems revenue from the design, development, assembly and deployment of 
information processing and communication systems, primarily deployable communications systems, which 
are largely variations on our SwiftLink® product line, and integration of those systems into customer networks. 
Swiftlink® systems are secure, deployable communications systems, sold mainly to units of the 
U.S. Departments of Defense, State, and Justice, as well as to other agencies. We recognize contract 
revenue as billable costs are incurred, and for fixed'price product delivery contracts using the 
percentage-of-completion method or proportional performance method, measured by eithertotallabor costs, 
total costs incurred or units shipped compared to total estimated labor costs, costs incurred, or units as 
appropriate under the contract. We recognize estimated losses on contracts in their entirety upon discovery. 

Government systems sales increased to $39.6 million in 2007 from $19.3 million in 2006 and $15.5 million 
in 2005. The 2006 and 2007 variations in systems revenues were primarily due to increases in the volume of 
unit sales of our SwiftLink® and deployable communications systems resutting from competitive wins, largely 
under the World Wide Satellite Systems Army procurement vehicle. 

The cost of our government systems revenue consists of compensation, benefits, travel, satellite "space 
segmenf' and airtime, costs related to purchased equipment components, and the costs of third-party 
contractors that we engage. These equipment and third-party costs are variable for our various types of 
products, and margins may fluctuate between periods based on the respective product mixes. 

Our government systems gross profit was the same at $6.7 million in 2007 and 2006 and increased from 
$3.5 million in 2005 primarily due to higher volume. In 2007, the effect of lower margins was offset by an 
increase over 2006 volume. 
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Operating Expenses: 

Research and Development Expense: 

!$ In millions) 2007 2006 

2007vs. 
2006 

_$- % 2005 

2006vs. 
2005 

_$- % 

Research and development expense 
Peroentofrevenue 

$ 13.1 
9% 

$ 12.6 
10"10 

$ 0.5 4% $ 13.9 
14% 

$ (1.3) (9)% 

Our research and development expense consists of compensation, benefits, travel costs, and a 
proportionate share of facilities and corporate overhead. The costs of developing software products are 
expensed prior to establishing technological feasibility. Technological feasibility is established for our software 
products when a detailed program design is completed. We incur research and development costs to 
enhance existing packaged software products as well as to create new software products including software 
hosted in our network operations center. These costs primarily include compensation and benefits as well as 
costs associated with using third-party laboratory and testing resources. We expense such costs as they are 
incurred unless technological feasibility has been reached and we believe that the capitalized costs will be 
recoverable. 

The expenses we incur relate to software applications which are being marketed to new and existing 
customers on a global basis. Throughout 2007 and 2006, research and development was primarily focused 
on cellular and hosted location-based applications, including Voica over IP E9-1-1, enhancements to our 
hosted location-based applications and enhancements to our hosted location-based servica platform and to 
our wireless text messaging software. Management continually assesses our spending on research and 
development to ensure resources are focused on products that are expected to achieve the highest level of 
success. In 2007, we capitalized $1.5 million of software development costs for certain software projects in 
accordance with the above policy. The capitalized costs relate to our software for wireless location-based 
services. These costs are being amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over 
the products, estimated useful life, not longer than three years. Amortization is also computed using the ratio 
that current revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that 
product (the revenue curve method). If this revenue curve method results in amortization greater than the 
amount computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. 
Amortization of software development costs is recorded as a direct cost of revenue. We believe that these 
capitalized costs will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by these products. Prior to the 
second quarter of 2005, our estimates did not sufficiently demonstrate future realizability of our software 
development costs expended on such products; and accordingly, all such costs were expensed as incurred. 

Research and development expense increased 4% in 2007 from 2006. This increase is mainly due to 
more company personnel assigned to software development work during 2007 than in 2006. The 9% 
decrease in research and development costs in 2006 as compared to 2005 is mainly due to fewer company 
personnel assigned to software development work. Also, due to the implementation of SFAS 123(R), we 
included $0.9 million, $0.6 million, and nil of non-cash stock compensation costs in research and 
development costs in 2007, 2006, and 2005 respectively. 

Our research and development expenditures have yielded more than 50 patents, primarily for wireless 
messaging and location technology, and approximately 190 pending patent applications. We believe thatthe 
intellectual property represented by these patents is a valuable asset that will contribute positively to our 
results of operations in 2008 and beyond. 

Sales and Marketing Expense: 

!$In millions) 

Sales and marketing expense 
Percent of revenue 

2007 

$ 11.9 
8% 

36 

2006 

$ 11.7 
9% 

2007vs. 2006vs. 
2006 2005 

- -----

_1 % 2005 _$- % 

$ 0.2 2% $ 10.5 $ 1.2 11% 
10% 
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Our sales and marketing expense includes compensation and benefits, trade show expenses, travel costs, 
advertising and public relations costs as well as a proportionate share of facility-related costs which are 
expensed as incurred. Our marketing efforts also include speaking engagements, and attending and 
sponsoring industry confarences. We sell our software products and services through our direct sales force 
and through indirect channels. We also leverage our relationships with original equipment manufacturers to 
market our software products to wireless carrier customers. We sell our products and services to agencies 
and departments of the U.S. government primarily through direct sales professionals. Sales and marketing 
costs increased 2% and 11 % in 2007 and 2006 respectively, primarily as a result of adding additional 
Government Segment sales personnel, and increased public relations fees. This was offset by reductions in 
senior sales and marketing executive staff costs. 

General and Administrative Expense: 

($ In millions) 

General and administrative expense 
Percent of revenue 

2007 VB. 2006 
2007 2006 _$ _ --'L 

$ 19.3 $ 17.0 $ 2.3 14% 
13% 14% 

2006 va. 2OCM5 
200S _$ _ --'L 

$ 15.0 $ 2.0 13% 
15% 

General and administrative expense consists primarily of costs associated with management, finance, 
human resources and internal information systems. These costs include compensation, benefits, professional 
faes, travel, and a proportionate share of rent, util~ies and other facil~ies costs which are expensed as 
incurred. The increases in both 2007 and 2006 were primarily attributable to higher legal and advisory fees 
associated w~h intellectual property related activ~. G&A expense included $0.8, $0.7, and $0.7 million of 
non-cash stock compensation 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. 

Depreciation and Amortization of Property and Equipment: 

2007 vs. 2006 
($ in millions) 2007 2006 _f__ .,. 
Depreciation and amortization of property and 

equipment $ 6.2 $ 8.0 
Average gross cost of property and equipment $ 50.3 $ 52.0 

$ (1.8) 
$ (1.7) 

(23)% 
(3)% 

2006 vs. 2005 
2005 _t % 

$ 8.6 
$ 47.4 

$ (0.6) 
$ 4.6 

7% 
10% 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment represents the period costs associated w~h our 
investment in information technology and telecommunications equipment, software, furniture and fixtures, and 
leasehold improvements. We compute depreciation and amortization using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated usefullHe of an asset generally ranges from five years for 
furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements to three years for most other types of assets including 
computers, software, telephone equipment and vehicles. Our depreciable asset base has decreased as a 
resuH of assets purchased in previous years becoming fully depreciated. In the second quarter of 2006, a 
review of experience with equipment and software used in our service bureau operations, led us to adjust 
their average asset lives from three years to four years on a prospective basis. Depreciation expense in 2006 
was $0.4 million less than it would have been if the shorter lives had been used. 

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets: 

2oo7vs. 2006vs. 
2006 2005 

($ in millions) 2007 2006 _$- % 2005 _$- % 

Amortization of acquired intangible assets $ 0.1 $ 0.1 $ - NM $ 0.2 $ (0.1) (50%) 

The acquired intangible assets associated w~h the Kivera Acquis~ion are being amortized over their useful 
lives of between three and nineteen years. The expense recognized in 2007, 2006, and 2005 relates to the 
intangible assets acquired in this acquisition, including customer lists, customer contracts, trademarks, and 
patents. 
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Interest Expense: 

2oo7vs 2006vs. 
2006 2005 

!$In millions) 2007 2006 _~L 
""-

2005 $ % 

Interest expense Incurred on notes payable 
and under our bank revolving credit 
agreement $ 1.6 $ 1.5 $ 0.1 7% $ 0.5 $ 1.0 200% 

Interest expense incurred on capital lease 
obligations 0.2 0.3 (0.1 ) (33)% 0.3 NM 

Amortization of deferred financing fees 0.3 0.4 (0.1) (25)% 0.5 (0.1) (20)% 
Amortization of debt discount 0.5 1.0 (0.5) (50)% 1.0 100% 
Write-off of unamortized debt discount and 

debt issuance expenses 2.4 2.4 100% NM 
Less: capitalized Interest ~ _(0.1) NM ----<Q.1) NM 

Total Interest and Financing Expense $ 4.9 $ 3.1 $ 1.8 58% $ 1.2 $ 1.9 158% 

Interest expense is incurred under notes payable, an equipment loan, a line of cred~, and capital lease 
obligations. Interest on notes, is primarily at stated interest rates of between 7.75% and 10.35% and line of 
credit borrowing is at the bank's prime rate, which was 7.25% as of December 31,2007. 

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced the $10 million secured notes w~h a new five year term loan payable to 
our principal bank. The borrowing rate under the new term loan is the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (7.5% 
at December 31 , 2007) and the loan is repayable in equal monthly installments of $0.2 million plus interest. 
The funds were used primarily to retire the March 2006 secured notes. This reflnancing resuHed in the 
$2.4 million wr~e-off of unamortized debt discount and debt issuance expenses in the second quarter of 2007. 

In March 2006, we issued $10 million of secured notes, w~h cash interest at the rate of 14% per annum, 
along w~h warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1 .75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at an 
exercise price of $2.40 per share (2006 Warrants). In December 2006, we borrowed $5 million under 3 year 
notes secured by accounts receivable of one customer. 

Our bank line of credit expires in June 2010, and our maximum line of cred~ is $22 million, subject to 
borrowing base lim~ations and working cap~al metrics. There were no borrowings outstanding under our line 
of credit at December 31,2007. 

Cash interest expense on notes payable was slightly higher for the year ended December 31, 2007 than in 
2006 mainly due to the effect of the higher priced March 2006 debt while it was outstanding. The interest 
incurred on the March 2006 notes, partially offset by reduced average principal balances on our revolving 
credit and other notes payable, has caused our total interest expense to be higher in 2006 than it was in 
2005. 

Deferred financing fees relate to the up-front expenditures at the time of contracting for notes payable and 
our revolving line of cred~ facility, which are being amortized over the term of the note or the life of the facility. 

The amortization of debt discount relates to the 2006 Warrants as well as adjustment to the terms of 
warrants issued in connection w~h 2004 financings. The value of the 2006 Warrants was estimated to be 
$2.9 million, determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which was recorded as a debt 
discount and addttional paid-in capital in 2004. The value olthe adjustments to the 2004 Warrants was 
estimated to be $0.6 million using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which was recorded as a debt 
discount and additional paid-in capital in the first quarter of 2006. The total debt discount at issuance was 
being amortized to interest expense over the three year life of the 2006 Notes, yielding an effective interest 
rate of 15.2%. Amortization expense in 2006 includes $1.0 million associated with the March 2006 notes. 
There was no comparable expense in 2005. 

Our capital lease obligations include interest at various amounts depending on the lease arrangement. Our 
interest under capital leases fluctuates depending on the amount of capital lease obligations in each year, 
and the interest under those leases, has remained relatively constant since 2006. The interest cost of cap~1 
lease financings was about the same in the years ending December 31,2007,2006, and 2005. 
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Deferred financing fees relate to the up·front payment of fees to secure our notes payable and our 
revolving line of credit facility. All other deferred financing fees are being amortized over the terms of the 
notes or, in the case of the amended line of credit, the life of the facility, which now expires in June 30, 2010. 

Our interest and financing expense increased in 2007 over 2006 due mainly to the write·off of the 
amortization of debt discount and financing fees associated with the refinancing of our March 2006 debt. Our 
interest and financing expense increased in 2006 over 2005 due mainly to the issuance of the 14% March 
2006 notes and 2006 Warrants. 

Other (Expense)/lncome, Net: 

2007 VS. 2006 2006 VB. 2005 -------

($ In millions) 2007 2006 _$- % 2005 _$- % 

Foreign currency translation! transaction 
(loss)/galn $ (0.1) $ (0.1) $ - NM $ (0.2) $ (0.1) 50% 

Miscellaneous other (expense)! income 0.6 0.1 0.5 500% 0.1 NM 
Total other (expense)/income, net $ 0.5 $ - 0.5 100% $ (0.1) 0.1 100% 

Other (expense)/income, net consists of interest earned on investment accounts and foreign currency 
translation/lransaction gain or loss. We record the effects of foreign currency translation on our cash 
receivables and deferred revenues that are slated in currencies other than our functional currency. 

Income Taxes: 

Because we have incurred net losses since 1999, no provision for federal or state income taxes has been 
made for the years ended December 31,2007,2006 and 2005. As a result of uncertainties regarding the 
realizability of the related assets, we have recorded a full valuation allowance for our deferred tax assets in 
our audited Consolidated Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10·K. Our 
net operating loss carryforwards from acquired businesses will begin to expire in 2011 and the net operating 
loss carryforwards from our operations will expire from 2019 through 2026. 

Discontinued Operations: 

In 2007, the Company sold its Enterprise division operations, which had previously been included in our 
Commercial Segment. The operations and cash flows of the business have been eliminated from those of 
continuing operations and the Company has no significant involvement in the operations since the disposal 
transactions. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations for the Enterprise assets have been 
classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form I O-K in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (Statement No. 144). 

Effective January I, 2007, the Company sold two of its three Enterprise units to strategic buyers for 
common stock in the acquiring publicly traded companies and earn-out arrangements. The Mobile Finance 
unit, including its U.S. and European operations, was sold to Stockgroup Information Systems, Inc. for 
1.5 million shares of common stock. Assets of the Mobile Office unit, doing business as mobeo®, were 
acquired by MobilePro Corporation for 9 million shares of common stock. During May 2007, the last 
Enterprise unit was sold to TPA Acquisition Corporation for $4 million in cash of which $0.2 million is in 
escrow, a $1 million IS-month note, and $0.2 million in equity interest ollhis privately held company. 
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The following table presents income statement data for the Enterprise division, currently reported as 
discontinued operations. The 2005 results were previously reported as part of the results of our Commercial 
Segment. 

2007vs. 
2006 2006 vs. 2005 

($ In millions) 2007 2006 _$- % 2005 _$- % 

Total revenue $ 5.6 $ 26.0 $ (20.4) (78)% $ 28.1 (2.1) (7)% 

Total gross profit 0.8 4.5 $ (3.7) (82)% 6.0 (1.5) 25% 

Loss from discontinued operations, 
including 2006 impairment charges of 
$15.5 million $ (0.3) $ (23.7) $ 23.4 99% $ (7.2) (16.5) 229% 

2006 vs. 2005 
($ In millions) 2006 2(1(!5 _ _ $- % 

---

Services revenue $ 15.3 $ 22.5 $ (7.2) (32)% 
Systems revenue 10.7 5.6 5.1 91% 

--- ---

Total Enterprise revenue ~ _ 28.1 (2.1) (7)% 

Direct cost of services 12.0 15.7 (3.7) (24)% 
Direct cost of systems 9.5 

---
6.3 3.2 51% 

Total Enterprise cost of revenue 21.5 22.1 ~ (3)% 

Services gross profit 3.3 6.9 (3.6) 52% 
Systems gross profit 1.2 ~ 2.0 250% 

Total Enterprise gross profit 4.5 6.0 . (1.§) 25% 

Research and development, sales, marketing, and general 
and administrative expenses ~ .. !I 9.9 3.0 30% 

Depreciation and amortization ~ 3.3 i3.,3) (100)% 

Wrtte-down of goodwill and other long-lived assets (15.5) NM 

Loss from discontinued operations $ (23.Z) $ (7.2) (16.5) 229% 

Lower volume and resulting lower gross profit in 2006 from Enterprise operations resulted from losses of 
subscribers to next generation networks from data-only and pager networks, and new subscriptions to our 
offerings were fewer than churn from our old technology network offerings. Enterprise systems revenue and 
gross profit grew in 2006 due to larger project volume. We sustained development spending to preserve the 
then pending business sale, and incurred other expenses in 2006 in connection with European staffing 
reduclions. In accordance wtth the relevant accounting literature, we ceased depreciation and amortization of 
the long-lived enterprise assets when they became classified as discontinued operations in 2005. In 2006, we 
recorded an impairment charge of $15.5 million to wrtte-down the value of goodwill and other long lived assets 
to its estimated fair value. 

Net Loss: 

($ In millions) 

Net income (loss) from continuIng 
operations 

Loss from discontinued operations 
Net loss 

.2007 

$ (1.0) 
.~ 
$ (1.3) 

2006 

$ 2.0 
@.7) 

$ (21.7) 

2007 vs. 20!l4L 

$- % 

$ (3.0) (150)% 
23.4 99% 

$ 20.4 94% 

Net loss changes for each year are as a result of the discussions above. 
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LIquidity and Capital Resources 

The following table summarizes our comparative statements of cash flow: 

($ In millions) 2007 200L 2005 
---

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in): 
Net loss $ (1.3) $ (21.7) $ (11.5) 
Less: loss from discontinued operations (0.3) (23.7) ~.J) 
Income (loss) from continuing operations (1.0) 2.0 (4.4) 
Non-cash charges 15.5 13.9 11.3 
Net changes in working capital (5.4) _ (2.9) 1.1 

---

Operating actlv~ies of continuing operations 9.1 13.0 8.0 
Operating activ~ies of discontinued operations (3.6) -~ .--@,g) 
Net operating activities 5.5 5.0 4.8 

Investing activ~ies for continuing operations: 
Purchases of property and equipment (2.6) (2.8) (4.6) 
Capitalized soflware development costs (1,5) (1.8) -...Jg.Q) 

Investing activities for continuing operations (4.1) (4.6) (6.6) 
Investing activHies for discontinued operations 4.0 ~ ~.J) ---

Net investing activ~ies (0.1) (6.0) (8.7) 
Financing activities: 
Payments on debt and leases (16.0) (13.6) (7.4) 
Proceeds from/(finance fees related to) issuance of slock and 

debentures, net (1.5) (0.1) 
Proceeds from borrowings 10.0 16.0 2.0 
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 2.2 
Proceeds from employee option exercises 4.0 ~ 0.7 ---

Net financing activ~ies from continuing operations 0.2 1.6 (4.9) 
Effect of exchange rates from discontinued operations 0.3 (0.1) 
Change In cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations 5.2 10.1 (3.5) 
Change in cash and cash equivalents from disconthiued operations 0.4 .. ..1UJ _(9.4) 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ 5.6 $ 1.0 $ (8.9) 

Days revenues outstanding in accounts receivable including unbilled 
receivables 87 82 91 

Capital resources: We have funded our operations, acquisitions, and capital expenditures primarily using 
cash generated by our operations, as well as the net proceeds from investor capital including: 

• June 2007 bank term loan borrowing of $10 million to refinance March 2006 secured notes, at lower 
coupon rate. 

• March 2006 issuance of secured notes and warrants (described below) which generated net cash 
proceeds of approximately $9.3 million. 

• December 2006 issuance of a $5 million note for a term ofthree years secured by accounts receivable 
of a customer. 

• Cap~lleases to fund fixed asset purchases. 

Sources and uses of cash: The company's cash and cash equivalents balance was approximately 
$16 million at December 31, 2007, a $5.6 million increase from $10.4 million at December 31, 2006. 

Operations: Cash generated by continuing operations decreased to $9.1 million in 2007 from $13.0 million 
in 2006 and increased from $8.0 million in 2005 due to fluctuations in working cap~al. Discontinued 
operations used $3.6 million, $8.0 million, and $3.2 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005. respectively. The 
operations and cash 
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flows of the discontinued operations have been eliminated from those of continuing operations and the 
Company has no significant involvement in the operations since the disposal transaction. 

Investing activaies: Fixed asset additions in 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $2.6, $2.8, and $4.6 million 
respectively. Also, investments were made in development of carrier software for resale which had reached 
the stage of development calling for capitalization, in the amounts approximately $2.0 million each year. 
Discontinued operations generated $4 million from the sale of assets in 2007. Investments were made during 
2005 and 2006 in discontinued operations primarily for enhancements to the core software for resale by the 
mobile asset management unit. 

Financing activities: On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10 million of secured notes with a five year bank 
term loan. The borrowing rate under the new term loan was prime plus 0.25% per annum (7.5% at 
December 31, 2007) and the loan is repayable in equal monthly installments of $0.2 million plus interest. The 
funds were used primarily to retire the March 2006 secured notes. In March 2006, we issued (i) $10 million of 
secured notes due March 10, 2009, with cash interest at 14% per annum, and (ii) warrants to purchase an 
aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per share. Also, 
some warrants that we had previously issued in 2004 contained provisions which required an adjustment in 
both the warrant price and the number of warrants outstanding as a consequence of the issuance of 2006 
Warrants. The resulting carrying value of the debt at issuance was $6.5 million, net of the original discount of 
$3.5 million which was amortized to interest expense over its three-year term using the effective interest 
method, yielding an effective interest rate of 15.2%. The remaining unamortized debt discount and deferred 
debt issuance expenses of $2.4 million were written off in the second quarter of 2007 as a result of early 
retirement of the March 2006 note. 

We have a $22 million revolving credIT line WITh our principal bank through June 2010. Upon amendment 
of our agreement WITh the bank in the second quarter of 2007, the borrowing rate was reduced to the bank's 
prime rate, which was 7.25% per annum at December 31,2007. Borrowings at any time are limITed based 
mainly on accounts receivable levels and a working capital ratio, each as defined in the amended line of credIT 
agreement. The line of credIT available is also reduced by the amount of letters of credit outstanding, which 
was $2.9 million at December 31,2007. As of December 31,2007, we had no borrowings outstanding under 
our bank line of credit and had approximately $11 million of unused borrowing availabilITy under the line. 

Our line of credIT and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a minimum 
adjusted quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio; as well as other restrictive covenants including, among 
others, restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake actions 
outside the ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt, 
distribute dividends, and repurchase our stock, and minimum tangible net worth. The bank credit agreement 
also contains a subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, 
or financial condITion of our Company occur, or (ii) no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any 
portion of the bank credit agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders securITy 
interests in the collateral of the bank credit agreement. If our performance does not result in compliance with 
any of our restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can 
be no assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under its agreement WITh us, 
including declaring all outstanding debt due and payable. As of December 31,2007, we were in compliance 
WITh the covenants related to our line of credit and term loan agreement and we believe that the Company will 
continue to comply with these covenants. 

On December 28, 2006, we issued a $5 million note for a term ofthree years, with cash interest at 10.35% 
per annum, secured by accounts receivable of one customer to an institutional lender. Scheduled payments 
for term debt, leases, and net reduction of our revolver borrowings totaled $16.0 million during 2007. 

During 2005, we made $6 million of scheduled payments under term debt and capital lease obligations 
while making a small net increase in borrowings under our line of credit. 
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We had standby letters of credit totaling approximately $2.9 million at year-end 2007 and $3.8 million at 
year-end 2006 in support of processing credit card payments from our customers, as collateral with a vendor, 
and security for office space. 

Contractual Commitments 

As of December 31, 2007, our most Significant commitments (including interest) consisted of long·term 
debt, obligations under capital leases and non·cancelable operating leases. We lease certain furnHure and 
computer equipment under capHalleases. We lease office space and equipment under non-cancelable 
operating leases. As of December 31,2007 our commitments consisted olthe following: 

!$In millions) 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 ~~,,-d Total 

Notes payable $ 4.7 $ 6.B $ 3.4 $ $ 14.9 
CapHailease obligations 2.0 1.6 0.2 3.8 
Operating leases, primarily for office space 3.4 4.3 1,6 O.~ 10.2 

Total contractual commitments $ 10.1 $ 12.7 $ 5.2 $ 0.9 $ 28.9 

Related Party Transactions 

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement wHh Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunHy of 
relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Executive 
Officer own a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a 
member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is 
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at 
the sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and condHions of the development are unacceptable 
to us, including without limitation the circumstances that market condHions make the agreement not favorable 
to us or the overall cost is not in the best into,est to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory 
restrictions apply. Our Board of Directors wili evaluate this opportunHy along with alternatives that are or may 
become available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definHive 
lease at this new development site. 

Item 7 A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

Interest Rate Risk 

We have limited exposure to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates. As discussed 
above under "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations - Liquidity and CapHaI Resources," we have a $22 million line of credH. A hypothetical 1 00 basis 
point adverse movement (increase) in the prime rate would have increased our interest expense for the year 
ended December 31, 2007 by approximately $0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact on our 
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

At December 31,2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of $16.0 million. Cash and cash equivalents 
consisted of demand deposits and money market accounts that are interest rate sensitive. However, these 
investments have short maturHies mitigating their sensitivHy to interest rates. A hypothetical 100 basis point 
adverse movement (decrease) in interest rates would have increased our net loss for 2007 by approximately 
$0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or 
cash flows. 

Foreign Currency Risk 

For the year ended December 31,2007, we generated $5.6 million of revenue outside the U.S. A majority 
of our transactions generated outside the U.S. are denominated in U.S. dollars and a change in exchange 
rates would not have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. As of December 31,2007, 
we had 
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approximately $0.1 million in unbilled receivables that are denominated in foreign currencies and would be 
exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. As of December 31, 2007, we did not have billed accounts 
receivable that would expose us to foreign currency exchange risk. During 2007, our average receivables and 
deferred revenue subject to foreign currency exchange risk were $0.1 million and $0.6 million, respectively. 
We recorded transaction losses of less than $0.1 million on foreign currency denominated receivables and 
deferred revenue for the year ended December 31,2007. 

Item 8. FInancial Statements and Supplementary Data 

The financial statements listed in Item 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 1 O·K beginning on 
page F-l. 

Item 9. Changes In and DIsagreements WIth Accountants on Accounting and FInancIal Disclosure 

None. 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation, 
under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and 
procedures. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and 
procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and 
procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable 
assurance of achieving their control objectives. 

Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) olthe Exchange A~1) were 
effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports we file or 
submH under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported wHhin the time periods 
specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated to our management, 
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions 
regarding required disclosure. 

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(1). Management, including our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation olthe effectiveness of our internal control over financial 
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control -Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations olthe Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded 
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31,2007. Management 
reviewed the results of their assessment with our AudH Committee. The effectiveness of our internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31,2007 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent 
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K. 

Changes In Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

There were no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter 
ended December 31,2007, that are materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

We have audited TeleCommunication Systems Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31,2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO crHeria). 
TeleCommunication Systems Inc.'s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting 
included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal control over financial reporting based on our 
audH. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material 
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliabilHy of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance wHh authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projecllons of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk 
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, TeleCommunication Systems Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal 
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries 
as of December 31 , 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' 
equHy, and cash flows for each olthe three years in the period ended December 31,2007 of 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated February 29, 2008 expressed an 
unqualified opinion thereon. 

Baltimore, Maryland 
February 29, 2008 

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 

45 

12/10/2008 3:28 I 



e10vk 

51of87 

http://www .sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/1111665/00009501330800 

Part III 

Item 10. DIrectors. ExecutIve OffIcers. and Corporate Governance 

The information required by this Item lOis incorporated herein by reference from the information 
captioned "Board of Directors" and "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managemenf' to be 
included in the Company's definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection w~h the 2008 Annual Meeting 
of Stockholders, to be held on June 12, 2008 (the "Proxy Statemenf'). The Company's Code of Ethics and 
Whistleblower Procedures may be found at http:/{wwwl.telecomsys.com/investorinfo/corpgovernance.cfm. 

Item 11. ExecutIve Comoensatlon 

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference from the information 
captioned "Board of Directors" and "Executive Compensation" to be included in the Proxy Statement. 

Item 12. Securltv OwnershIp of CertaIn BeneficIal Owners and Management 

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference from the information 
captioned "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managemenf'to be included in the Proxy 
Statement. 

Item 13. CertaIn RelatIonshIps and Related TransactIons and DIrector Independence 

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference from the information 
captioned "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" and "General Information Concerning the Board 
of Directors" to be included in the Proxy Statement. 

Item 14. PrIncIpal Accountant Fees and ServIces 

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference from the information 
captioned "Principal Accountant Fees and Services" to be included in the Proxy Statement. 
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Part IV 

Item 15. Exhibits. Financial Statement Schedules 

(a)(l) Financial Statements 

The financial statements listed in Item 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 1 O·K beginning on 
page F·1. 

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules 

The financial statement schedule required by Item 15 is included in ExhibH 12 to this Annual Report on 
Form 10·K. 

Exhibits 

The exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2007. Our 
audtt also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements 
are the responsibiltty of the Company's management. Our responsibiltty is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audtts. For the year ended December 31, 2005, we did not audit the 
financial statements of TeleCommunication Systems (Holdings) Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary, which 
statements reflect a net loss, which represents 25 percent of the consolidated loss from discontinued 
operations for the year ended December 31, 2005. Those statements were audtted by other auditors whose 
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as tt relates to the amounts included for 
TeleCommunication Systems (Holdings) Ltd., is based solely on the report of the other audttors. 

We conducted our audtts in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audtt to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audtt also includes asseSSing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of TeleCommunication 
Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2007, in 
conformtty wtth U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial 
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents 
fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein. 

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, on January I, 2006, the Company 
changed its method of accounting for stock-based compensation in accordance wtth guidance provided in 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), "Share-Based Payment." 

We also have audited, in accordance wtth the standards olthe Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States), TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31,2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 29, 
2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

Baltimore, Maryland 
February 29, 2008 

lsi Ernst & Young LLP 
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Assets 
Current assets: 

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(amounts In thousands, except share data) 

December 31, 
2007 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,955 
20,424 
15,229 
5,373 

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $266 in 2007 and $290 in 2006 
Unbilled receivables 
Inventory 
Other current assets 
Current assets of disconlinued operations 

Total current assets 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and 

amortization of $35,969 in 2007 and $40,594 in 2006 
Software development costs, net of accumulated amortization of $4,783 in 

2007 and $3,262 in 2006 
Acquired intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $509 in 

2007 and $362 in 2006 
Goodwill 
other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and stockholders' equity 
Current liabilHies: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
Current portion of capttal lease obligations and notes payable 
Current liabilRies of discontinued operations 

Total current liabilities 
CapHallease obligations and notes payable, less current portion 
Stockholders' equity: 

Class A Common Stock; $0.01 par value: 
Authorized shares - 225,000,000; issued and outstanding shares of 

34,970,394 in 2007 and 32,267,893 in 2006 
Class B Common Stock; $0.01 par value: 

Authorized shares - 75,000,000; issued and outstanding shares of 
7,301,334 in 2007 and 7,525,672 in 2006 

Additional paid-in capital 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 
Accumulated deficH 

Total stockholders' equity 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equtty 

5,561 

62,542 

11,209 

4,406 

709 
1,813 
1,445 

$ 82,124 

$ 12,459 
4,915 
4,685 
5,444 

27,503 
10,657 

349 

74 
227,987 

(125) 
_(184,321) 

43,964 
$ 82,124 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

F-3 

December 31, 
2006 

$ 10,358 
21,544 

7,636 
5,293 
2,818 

13,596 
61,245 

12,853 

4,402 

856 
1,813 
2,526 

$ 83,695 

$ 10,421 
5,663 
3,485 
4,900 

11,400 

35,869 
12,721 

322 

76 
217,739 

(183,032) 

__ ~5-,105 
$ 83,695 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
(amounts in thousands, except per share data) 

Year ended Dec~I!I~!t~ 3_1, 
2007 2006 2005 

Revenue 
Services 
Systems 

Total revenue 

Direct costs of revenue 
Direct cost of services 
Direct cost of systems, including amortization of software 

development costs of $1 ,522, $1,273 and $786, respectively 
Total direct cost of revenue 

Services gross profit 
Systems gross profit 

Total gross profit 

Operating costs and expenses 
Research and development expense 
Sales and marketing expense 
General and administrative expense 
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 

Total operating costs and expenses 
Operating Income (Loss) 
Interest expense 
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance expenses, 

including write-off of $2,458 in 2007 
Other (expense)/income, net 

Income (Loss) from continuing operations 
Loss from discontinued operations 
Net loss 

Income (Loss) per share - basic: 
Income (Loss) per share from continuing operations 
Loss per share from discontinued operations 

Net loss per share - basic 

Income (Loss) per share - diluted: 
Income (Loss) per share from continuing operations 
Loss per share from discontinued operations 

Net loss per share-diluted 

$ 88,062 $ 88,380 
~"1Q.6 36,556 

144,lEm 124,936 

52,161 52,540 

37,906 17,883 
90,067 70,423 
35,901 35,840 
18,200 18,673 

_54,101 _54,513 

13,072 12,586 
11,917 11,713 
19,334 16,959 
6,200 7,956 

148 147 
50,671 49,360 

3,430 5,153 
(1,776) (1,751) 

(3,176) (1,447) 
__ 508 22 

(1,014) 1,976 
(27ID (23,671) 

$ (1,289) $ (21,695) 

$ (0.02) $ 0.05 
_(0.01) ----.JQ,§Qj 

$ (0.03) $ (0.55) 

$ (0.02) $ 0.05 
(Q,Q!) (0.59) 

~ (0.03) $ (0.54) 
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 41,453 39,430 
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 41,453 40,166 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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------ -

$ 74,972 
_2'?11!1 

102,153 

39,230 

17,719 
56,949 
35,742 

9,462 
45,204 

13,863 
10,535 
15,044 

8,625 
177 

48,244 
(3,040) 

(702) 

(470) 
(104) 

(4,316) 
(7,1~1) 

$ (11,467) 

$ (0.11 ) 
__ (0.19) 

$ (0.30) 

$ (0.11) 
(0.19) 

$ (0.30) 
38,823 
38,823 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity 
(amounts in thousands, except share data) 

Accumulated 
Class A ClasaB Additional Other 

Common Common Deferred Pald·ln Comprehensive Accumulated 
Stock -~ Com~nsatlo~ C8~1ta1 Incoma {Lo_~L Deficit __ Total 

Balance at January 1 J 2005 $ 306 $ B4 $ (787) $ 209,778 $ (6) $ (149,869) $ 59,506 
Options exercised for the 

purchase of 
290,960 shares of Class A 
Common Stock 3 310 313 

Issuance of 176.851 shares 
of Class A Common Stock 
under Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan 2 380 382 

Issuance of 14,816 restricted 
shares of Class A Common 
Stock to directors and key 
executives (41) 41 

Issuance costs related to 
2,500,000 shares of 
Class A Common Stock In 
connection with a private 
financing (81) (81) 

Surrender of 100,564 
restricted shares of Class A 
Common Stock as 
payment for payroll tax 
wnhholdlngs (1 ) (249) (250) 

Conversion of 
373,038 shares of Class B 
Common Stock to Class A 
Common Stock 4 (4) 

Stock compensation expense 
for Issuance of Class A 
Common Stock options at 
below fair market value 123 123 

Amortization of deferred 
compensation expense 597 597 

Valuation adjustment to stock 
options issued to 
non-employees for service (27) (27) 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment (34) (34) 

Net loss for 2005 
--~--.- --- (11,467) (11,467) 

Balance at December 31, 
2005 $ 314 $ 60 $ (231) $ 210,275 $ (40) $ (161,338) $ 49,062 

Elimination of deferred 
compensation upon 
adoption of 
SFAS No. 123(R) 231 (231) 

Options exercised for the 
purchase of 
209,632 shares of Class A 
Common Stock 2 343 345 

Issuance of 212,194 shares 
of Class A Common Stock 
under Employes Stock 
Purchase Plan 2 388 390 

Issuance of warrants to 
purchase 1,750,000 shares 
of Class A Common Stock 3,455 3,455 

Surrender of 67,827 restricted 
shares of Class A Common 
Stock as payment for 
payroll tax w~hholdings (1) (187) (188) 
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Conversion of 
510,291 shares of Class B 
Common Stock to Class A 
Common Stock 

Stock compensation expense 
for issuance of Class A 
Common Stock options tor 
continuing operations 

Stock compensation expense 
for issuance of Class A 
Common Stock options tor 
discontinued operations 

Vesting of employee stock 
options 

Valuation adjustment to stock 
options issued to 
non-employees for service 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment 

Net loss for 2006 

Balance at December 31, 

5 (5) 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/dala/1111665/00009501330800 

2,872 

504 

244 

76 

40 

2,872 

504 

244 

76 

40 
(21,695) -'l11,695) 

2006 $ 322 $ 76 ~$ ~~.,,;;;; $ 217,739 $~~,....;~ $ (183,032) $ 35,105 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity - (Continued) 
(amounts In thousands, except share data) 

Accumulated 
C!aseA ClassB Additional Other 

Common Common Deterred Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated 
__ !!toc~ Stock Com~n8atlon _j:apltal _ Income (b!lS~. Ceflclt Tala! 

Options exercised for the 
purchase of 
1,347,301 shares of Class A 
Common Stock 14 3,461 3,475 

Issuance of 173,833 shares of 
Class A Common Stock 
under Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan 2 541 543 

Exercise of warrants to 
purchase 886,787 shares of 
Class A Common Stock 9 2,208 2,217 

Surrender of 19,358 restricted 
shares of Class A Common 
Stock as payment for 
payroll tax wtthholdlngs (57) (57) 

Conversion of 224,338 shares 
of Class B Common Stock 
to Class A Common Stock 2 (2) 

Stock compensation expense 
for Issuance of Class A 
Common Stock options for 
continuing operations 3,983 3,963 

Stock compensation expense 
for issuance of Class A 
Common Stock options for 
discontinued operations 132 132 

Unrealized loss on securities 
and other (125) (125) 

Net loss for 2007 (1,289) (1,289) 
Balance at December 31, 

2007 $ 349 $ 74 $ $ 227,987 $ (125) $ (184,321) $ 43,964 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(amounts In thousands) 

Year ended December 31 t ----

. _~Of)7 __ 2006 2005 

Operating activities: 
Net loss $ (1,289) $ (21,695) $ (11,467) 

Less: Loss from discontinued operations (275) ---.l?M71) IT,151) 
Income (Loss) from continuing operations (1 ,014) 1,976 (4,316) 

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating 
activities: 
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 6,200 7,956 8,625 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 148 147 177 
Non-cash stock compensation expense - employee 3,963 3,116 720 
Non-cash stock compensation expense - non-employee 370 
Amortization of software development costs 1,522 1,273 786 
Amortization of debt discount 480 960 
Amortization of deferred financing fees included in interest 

expense 313 487 470 
Write-off of unamortized debt discount and deferred finance fees 2,458 
Other non-cash (income)/expenses 19 (17) 485 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable, net 1,120 (658) (2,639) 
Unbilled receivables (7,593) (1,275) 3,524 
Inventory (80) (2,094) (635) 
Other current assets (1,870) 152 (1,140) 
Other noncurrent assets 541 111 (439) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,038 246 1,423 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities (748) 1,302 195 
Deferred revenue 1,200 -~ 758 

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 9,067 13,044 7,994 
Net used in operating activities of discontinued operations (3,598) (8,037) (3,240) 
Total net cash provided by operating activities !j,469 5,007 __ .4,75~ 
Investing activities: 
Purchases of property and equipment (2,577) (2,760) (4,636) 
Capitalized software development costs (1,5g§) (1,849) (1,960) 
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations (4,102) (4,609) (6,596) 
Net cash provided by/(used) in investing activities of discontinued 

operations _ 4,000 _(1,442) (2,11"1) 
Net cash used in investing activities (102) _t6,Q51) (8,713) 
Financing activities: 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 10,000 16,000 2,000 
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations (15,996) (5,589) (10,451) 
Proceeds from/(payments on) draws on revolving line of credit, net (8,004) 3,004 
Financing fees related to issuance of Class A Common Stock and 

Convertible subordinated debentures (1,470) (81) 
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 2,208 
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options and sale of stock 4,018 731 696 
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities of continuing 

operations 230 1,668 (4,832) 
Net cash provided by financing activities of discontinued operations 58 
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities _ 230 .1,726 (4,832) 
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents of 

discontinued operations 357 (140) 
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash from continuing operations 5,195 10,103 (3,434) 
Net increase /(decrease) In cash from discontinued operations 40~ (9,064) .. (5,497) 
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash 5,597 1,038 (8,931) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,358 9,320 18,251 
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Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 15,955 $ 10,358 $ 9,320 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(amounts In thousands, except share and per share data) 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 

Description of Business 

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. develops and applies highly reliable wireless data communications 
technology. We manage our business in two segments, Commercial and Government: 

Commercial Segment. Our carrier software system products enable wireless carriers to deliver 
premium services including short text messages, location information, internet content, and other 
enhanced communication services to and from wireless phones. We provide enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-t-t) 
services, commercial location-based services, and inter-carrier text message distribution services on a 
hosted, or service bureau basis. As of December 3t, 2007, we provide hosted services under 
contracts with more than 30 wireless carrier networks and Voice-over-Internet-Protocol (VoIP) service 
providers. We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand 
McNally® Traffic application which is available via all major US wireless carriers. We earn carrier 
software-based systems revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and customization fees 
and maintenance fees. Pricing is generally based on the volume of capacity purchased from us by the 
carrier. We also provide carrier technology on a hosted, i.e., service bureau basis; that is, customers 
use our software functionality through connections to and from our network operations centers, paying 
us monthly based on the number of subscribers, cell sttes, or call center circuits, or message volume. 

Government Segment. We design, assemble, sell and maintain satelltte-based network 
communication systems, including our Swiftlink® deployable communication systems which 
incorporate high speed, encrypted, Internet Protocol technology. We also own and operate secure 
satellite teleport facilities, and resell access to satellite airtime (known as space segment). 

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity wtth accounting principles 
generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of our wholly 
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments with 
a maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash equivalents are reported at fair value, which 
approximates cost. 

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable. Substantially all of our accounts receivable are trade 
receivables generated in the ordinary course of our business. We use estimates to determine the amount of 
the allowance for doubtful accounts necessary to reduce accounts receivable to their expected net realizable 
value. We estimate the amount of the required allowance by reviewing the status of significant past-due 
receivables and by establishing provisions for estimated losses by analyzing current and historical bad debt 
trends. Changes to our allowance for doubtful accounts are recorded as a component of general and 
administrative expenses in our accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Our credtt and 
collection policies and the financial strength of our customers are critical to us in maintaining a relatively small 
amount of wrtte-offs of receivables. We generally do not require collateral from or enter netting agreements 
with our customers. Receivables that are ultimately deemed uncollectible are charged-off as a reduction of 
receivables and the allowance for doubtful accounts. 

Inventory. We maintain inventory of component parts and finished product for our Government deployable 
communications systems. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is based on the weighted 
average method. The cost basis for finished untts includes manufacturing cost. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 
(amounts In thousands, except share and per share data) 

Investments In Marketable Securities and Note Receivable. The Company holds approximately 
$0.9 million of marketable securities and a $1.0 million note receivable which were obtained as partial 
consideration from three small divestitures during 2007. The marketable securities and note receivable are 
included in other current assets and marketable securities are classified as available-far-sale in accordance 
with the provision of SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. These 
securities are carried at fair market value based on quoted market price with net unrealized losses of 
$0.1 million reported in stockholders' equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. 
The Company considers the loss on one of the securities to be temporary because of restructuring in process 
at the issuing company and the Company has the ability and the intent to hold the investments for a 
reasonable period of time. If the Company determines that a decline in fair value of one or both of the 
marketable securities Is other than temporary, a realized loss would be recognized in earnings. Gains or 
losses on securities sold will be based on the specific identification method. The note receivable bears simple 
interest at 8.25% over an 18-month term and is due in November of 2008. 

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of equipment, 
generally five years far furniture and fixtures and three years far computer equipment, software and vehicles. 
Our depreciable asset base includes equipment in our network operations centers related to our hosted 
service offerings, development costs far computer software for internal use, and company-wide computer 
hardware. In the second quarter of 2006, a review of experience with equipment and software used in our 
service bureau operations led us to adjust their average asset lives from three years to four years on a 
prospective basis. Depreciation expense in 2006 was $0.4 million less than it would have been if the shorter 
lives had been used. Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method over 
the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the remaining term of the lease. Assets held under capital leases 
are stated at the lesser of the present value of Mure minimum lease payments or the fair value of the 
property at the inception of the lease. The assets recorded under capital leases are amortized over the lesser 
of the lease term or the estimated usefullHe of the assets in a manner consistent with our depreciation policy 
for owned assets. 

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of assets of acquired businesses. 
Goodwill acquired in a purchase business combination is not amortized, but instead is evaluated at least 
annually far impairment using a discounted cash flow model in accordance with the provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. 

Software Development Costs. We capitalize software development costs after we establish 
technological feasibility, and amortize those costs over the estimated useful lives of the software beginning on 
the date when the software is first installed and used. Acquired technology, representing the estimated value 
of the proprietary technology acquired, has also been recorded as capitalized software development costs. 

Costs we incurred are capitalized when technological feasibility has been established. For new products, 
technological feasibility is established when an operative version of the computer software product is 
completed in the same software language as the product to be uHimately marketed, performs all the major 
functions planned for the product, and has successfully completed initial customer testing. Technological 
feasibility for enhancements to an existing product is established when a detail program design is completed. 
Costs that are capitalized include direct labor, related overhead and other direct costs. These costs are 
amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the product's estimated useful 
life, which has not been greater than three years. Amortization is also computed using the ratio that current 
revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated Mure revenue far that product (the 
revenue curve method). If this revenue curve method results in amortization greater than the amount 
computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Our poliCies to 
determine when to capitalize software development costs and how much to amortize in a given period require 
us to make subjective estimates and judgments. If our software products do not achieve the level of market 
acceptance that we expect and our 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

future revenue estimates for these products change, the amount of amortization that we record may increase 
compared to prior periods. The amortization of capitalized software development costs has been recorded as 
a cost of revenue. 

Acquired technology is amortized over the product's estimated useful life based on the purchase price 
allocation and valuation procedures performed at the time of the acquisition. Amortization is calculated using 
the ratio of the estimated future cash flows generated in each period to the estimated total cash flows to be 
contributed from each product or the straight-line method, whichever is greater. 

For 2007,2006, and 2005, we capitalized $1,525, $1,849, and 1,960, respectively, of software 
development costs of continuing operations for certain software projects after the point of technological 
feasibility had been reached but before the products were available for general release. Accordingly, these 
costs have been capitalized and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives beginning when the 
products are available for general release. The capitalized costs relate to our location-based software, which 
is part of our continuing operations. 

We believe that these capitalized costs will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by these 
products. 

Acquired Intangible Assats. Acquired intangible assets have useful lives of 5 to 19 years. We are 
amortizing these assets using the greater of the straight-line method or the revenue curve method. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. Long-lived assets, including intangible assets, are reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or 
group of assets may not be fully recoverable. 

If an impairment indicator is present, we evaluate recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of 
the assets to future undiscounted net cash flows that we expect to generate from these assets. If the assets 
are impaired, we recognize an impairment charge equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds 
the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying values or fair 
values, less estimated costs of disposal. 

Other Comprehensive Income/Loss. Comprehensive income/loss includes changes in the equity of a 
business during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. 
Other comprehensive incomenoss refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive income, but excluded from net income. For 
operations outside the U.S. that prepare financial statements in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, results 
of operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates during the period, and assets and 
liabilities are translated at end-of-period exchange rates. Translation adjustments for our European subsidiary 
are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders' equity. Also included 
are any unrealized gains or losses on marketable securHies that are classified as available-for-sale. Total 
comprehensive loss for the three years ended December 31 , 2007 was not materially different than 
consolidated net loss. 

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is generated from our two segments as described below. 

Services Revenue. Revenue from hosted services consists of monthly recurring service fees and is 
recognized in the month earned. Revenue from subscriber service fees is recognized in the period earned. 
Maintenance fees are collected in advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance period, which is 
typically annual. Any unearned revenue, including unrecognized maintenance fees, is included in deferred 
revenue. 

We also recognize services revenue from the design, development and deployment of information 
processing and communication systems primarily for government enterprises. These services are provided 
under time and materials contracts, cost plus fee contracts, or fixed price contracts. Revenue is recognized 
under time and materials contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price 
service contracts 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 
(amounts In thousands, except share and per share data) 

are accounted for using the proportional performance method. These contracts generally allow for monthly 
billing or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses on contracts are 
recognized in their entirety at the date that they become evident. 

Systems Revenue. We design, develop, and deploy communications systems. These systems may 
include packaged software licenses. Systems typically contain multiple elements, which may include the 
product license, installation, integration, and hardware. The total arrangement fee is allocated among each 
element based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the relative fair value of each of the elements. Fair 
value is generally determined based on the price charged when the element is sold separately. In the 
absence of evidence of fair value of a delivered element, revenue is allocated first to the undelivered 
elements based on fair value and the residual revenue to the delivered elements. The software licenses are 
generally perpetual licenses for a specified number of users that allow for the purchase of annual 
maintenance at a specified rate. All fees are recognized as revenue when four criteria are met. These four 
crtterla are (i) evidence of an arrangement (ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable and 
(iv) the fee is probable of collection. Software license fees billed and not recognized as revenue are included 
in deferred revenue. Systems containing software licenses include a 90-day warranty for defects. We have 
not incurred significant warranty costs on any software product to date, and no costs are currently accrued 
upon recording the related revenue. 

Systems revenue is also derived from fees for the development, implementation and maintenance of 
custom applications. Fees from the development and implementation of custom applications are generally 
performed under time and materials and fixed fee contracts. Revenue is recognized under time and materials 
contracts and cost plus tee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price product delivery contracts are 
accounted for using the percentage-of-completion or proportional performance method, measured etther by 
total costs incurred as a percentage of total estimated costs at the completion of the contract, or direct labor 
costs incurred compared to estimated total direct labor costs for projects for which third-party hardware 
represents a significant portion of the total estimated costs. These contracts generally allow for monthly billing 
or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses under long-term contracts are 
recognized in their entirety at the date that they become evident. Revenue from hardware sales to our 
monthly subscriber customers is recognized as systems revenue. 

Under our contracts wtth the U.S. government for both systems and services, contract costs, including the 
allocated indirect expenses, are subject to audtt and adjustment by the Defense Contract Audtt Agency. We 
record revenue under these contracts at estimated net realizable amounts .. 

Our accounting for revenues from systems and services contracts follows the guidance of Emerging 
Issues Task Force 00-21 "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables" (EITF 00-21) for determining of 
the number of units of accounting and the allocation of the total fair value among the muttiple elements. 

Deferral of Costs Incurred. We defer costs incurred in certain situations as dictated by authoritative 
accounting literature. In addition, if the revenue for a delivered item is not recognized because it is not 
separable from the arrangement, then we defer incremental costs related to that delivered but unrecognized 
element. 

Advertising Costs. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $34, $29, 
and $120, for the years ended December 31,2007,2006, and 2005, respectively. 

Capitalized Interest. Total interest incurred was $5,026, $3,253, and $1,312 for the years ended 
December 31,2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Approximately $74, $55, and $140 of total interest incurred 
was capitalized as a component of software development costs and construction in progress during the year 
ended December 31,2007,2006, and 2005 respectively. 

Stock-Based Compensation. We have two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are 
described more fully in Note 17. 

F-ll 

65 of 87 12/10/20083:28 I 



elOvk 

66 of 87 

http://www.sec.gov / Archivcs/edgar/data/1111665/00009501330800 

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 
(amounts In thousands, except share and per share data) 

Beginning January I, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 123(R) 
("Statement No. 123(R)") requires us to report all share based payments to employees, including grants of 
employee stock options in the income statement based on their fair value. We adopted Statement No. 123(R) 
effective January I, 2006 using the modified prospective method. Had we adopted Statement No. 123(R) in 
prior periods, the impact of that standard would have approximated the impact of Statement No. 123 as 
described in the disclosure of pro forma net loss and loss per share below. 

On October 28, 2005, our Board of Directors adopted resolutions to accelerate the vesting of certain 
outstanding, unvested "out·of-the-money" stock options. The accelerated vesting provisions applied to all 
qualifying options wnh an exercise price of $6.00 or greater and as a result, options to purchase 
1,455,000 shares of our stock became fully exercisable as of that date. The primary purpose of the 
acce/erated vesting was to eliminate future compensation expense the Company would otherwise recognize 
in its statement of operations with respect to these options upon the adoption of Statement No. 123(R), which 
we adopted on January I, 2006 as discussed above. Statement No. 123(R) requires that compensation 
expense associated wnh stock options be recognized in the statement of operations rather than as a pro 
forma footnote disclosure in our consolidated financial statements. The acceleration of the vesting of these 
options eliminated the future non-cash stock compensation expense associated wnh these outstanding 
options. We estimated that the related future compensation expense to be recorded under Statement 
No. 123(R) that was eliminated as a resu~ olthe acceleration of vesting these options was approximately 
$1,200. 

Prior to 2006 we recorded compensation expense for all stock-based compensation plans using the 
intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, (Accounting for Stock 
Issued to Employees) ("APB No. 25") and related interpretations. Under APB No. 25, compensation expense 
is recorded pro-rata over the vesting period to the extent that the fair value of the underlying stock on the date 
of grant exceeds the exercise or acquis~ion price of the stock or stock-based award. The related 
compensation constitutes portions of our direct cost of revenue, research and development expense, sales 
and marketing expense, and general and administrative expense as detailed in the table presented with our 
Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

We have also granted restricted stock to directors and certain key executives. The restrictions expired at 
the end of one year for directors and expire in annual increments over three years for executives and are 
based on continued employment. The fair value of the restricted stock on the date of issuance is recognized 
as non-cash stock compensation expense over the period over which the restrictions expire. 

The following table illustrates the effect on net loss and loss per common share if we had applied the fair 
value recognition provisions of FASB Statement 123(R), to stock-based employee compensation, for the 
years ended December 31, 2005. 

2005 

Net loss attributable to common stockholders, as reported 
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net loss 

$ (11,467) 
720 

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based 
method for all awards 

Pro forma net loss attributable to common stockholders 

Loss per share - basic and diluted: 
As reported 

Pro forma 

(4,898) 

$ (15,646) 

$ (0.30) 

$ (0.40) 

Research and Development Expense. We incur research and development costs which are primarily 
comprised of compensation and travel expenses related to our engineers engaged in the development and 
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enhancement of new and existing software products. All costs are expensed as incurred prior to reaching 
technological feasibility. 

Income Taxes. Income tax amounts and balances are accounted for using the liability method of 
accounting for income taxes and deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted 
tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, '"Fair Value Measurements," which defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. 
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 200B, the FASB 
decided to issue a final Staff Position to allow a one-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for non-financial 
assets and non-financial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on 
a nonrecurring basis. The FASB also decided to amend SFAS 157 to exclude FASB Statement No. 13 and its 
related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address leasing transactions. The Company is 
evaluating the impact of this standard and does not expect the adoption of SFAS 157 to have a material 
impact on its financial statements. 

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 4B, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes" 
(FIN 4B) which prescribes a minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial 
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position. FIN 4B also provides guidance on derecognition, 
measurement, classification, interest and penaities, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. If 
a tax position does not meet the more-likely-than-not initial recognition threshold, no benefit i, recorded in the 
financial statements. The Company adopted FIN 4B on January 1, 2007 for which there was no cumulative 
effect of applying the provisions of this interpretation. The Company classifies interest and penaities accrued 
on any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or 
penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for year ended December 31, 2007 and the 
consolidated balance sheet at December 31,2007. The Company does not currently anticipate that the total 
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will Significantly increase within the next 12 months. The Company files 
income tax returns in U.S. and state jurisdictions. The Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state, 
and local tax examinations in major tax jurisdictions for periods before 2003. 

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, "Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities." 
SFAS 159 allows companies to elect to measure certain assets and liabilities at fair value and is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 159 to 
have a material impact on its financial statements. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (R), "Business Combinations." This standard 
establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial 
statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any non-controlling interest in the 
acquired and the goodwill acquired. This statement also establishes disclosure requirements which will 
enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141 (R) is 
effective for us for acquisitions made after November 30, 2009. The Company is evaluating the impact of this 
standard and does not expect the adoption of SFAS 141 (R) to have a material impact on its financial 
statements. 

2. Enterprise Assets-Discontinued Operations 

As of December 31,2005, we committed to a plan to sell our Enterprise division operations, which had 
previously been included in our Commercial Segment. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, resuits of 
operations, and cash flows for the Enterprise assets have been classified as discontinued operations for all 
periods presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (Statement 
No. 144). As a 
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result of the classification of these assets as discontinued operations, we had continued to perform quarterly 
reviews of the associated goodwill and other long lived assets for impairment. During 2006, we recorded an 
impairment charge of $15,500 in our loss from discontinued operations which is included on the Consolidated 
Statement of Operations. They continued to be a part of our business until sold during the first half of 2007. 
The operations and cash flows of the businesses have been eliminated from those of continuing operations 
and the Company has no significant involvement in the operations since the disposal transactions. 

Effective January 1 , 2007, the Company sold two of its three Enterprise units to strategic buyers for 
common stock in the acquiring publicly traded companies valued at approximately $1 ,000 and earn-out 
arrangements. The Company does not currently expect to receive material payments from the earn-out 
arrangements. During May 2007, the last Enterprise unH was sold to TPA Acquisition Corporation for $4,000 
in cash ($200 remains in escrow), a $1 ,000 note receivable bearing interest at 8.25% over 18-months, and 
$250 in equity interest. 

Enterprise assets and liabilities classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated 
December 31, 2006 balance were as follows: 

Assets: 

December 31, 
2006 

Current assets 
Long-lived assets and goodwill 
Other long term assets 
Assets of discontinued operations 

L1abilUies: 

$ 8,739 
4,816 

41 
13,598 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue and other liabilities 

liabilities of discontinued operations 
Net assets of discontinued operations $ 

9,036 
2,384 

11,400 

2,198 

Impairment charges of $15,500 to adjust the estimated carrying value of Enterprise long-lived assets and 
goodwill were recorded during 2006 based on information obtained during the process of offering the 
operating assets for sales and the declines in the Subscriber businesses being sold. Summarized resu~s of 
operations for the Enterprise assets included in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations are 
as follows: 

2007 2006 2005 ---

Revenue $ 5,569 $ 26,020 $ 28,127 

Gross profft $ 833 $ 4,469 $ 6,025 

Loss from discontinued operations $ (275) $ (23,671) m !I,151) 

During 2007, 2006, and 2005 total revenues generated from Enterprise systems and services in the 
U.S. were $5,569, $22,020 and $23,127, respectively, and the total revenues generated from products and 
services of our Enterprise division outside of the U.S. were $4,000 and $5,000, respectively for 2006 and 
2005. The Enterprise division did not have any customers that constituted a significant portion of our 
consolidated net revenues. As of December 31 , 2006 our Enterprise division had approximately $1 ,800 of 
assets located outside the U.S. 

Leases for European offices have been assigned to the buyer of one of the subscriber units sold effective 
January 1, 2007. We incurred rent expense related to these facilities of $1 ,318 in 2006 and $900 in 2005. 
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3. Loss Per Common Share 

Basic loss per common share is based upon the average number of shares of common stock outstanding 
during the period. Because we incurred a loss from continuing operations in 2007 and 2005 potentially dilutive 
securHies were excluded from the computation because the result would be anti-dilutive. These potentially 
dilutive securities consist of stock options, restricted stock, and warrants as discussed in Notes 1 and 17. 

The following table summarizes the computations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years 
ended December 31 : 

Income (Loss) from continuing operations $ 
Loss from discontinued operations 
Net loss $ 
Denominator for basic earnings per share - weighted-average common shares 

outstanding 
Net effect of dilutive stock options based on treasury stock method 
Net effect of dilutive warrants based on treasury stock method 
Denominator for diluted earnings per share - weighted-average common 

shares outstanding and assumed conversions 

Income (Loss) per share - basic: 
Income (Loss) per share from continuing operations $ 
Loss per share from discontinued operations 
Net loss per share - basic $ 

Income (Loss) per share - diluted: 
Income (Loss) per share from continuing operations $ 
Loss per share from discontinued operations 
Net loss per share-diluted $ 

4. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information 

~0I)7 

(1,014) 
(275) 

(1,289) 

41,453 

41,543 

(0.02) 
(0.01) 
(0.03) 

(0.02) 
(0.01) 

(0.03) 

___ 2006~_ 

$ 1,976 
J3,671) 
$ (21,895) 

39,430 
632 
104 

40,166 

$ 0.05 
(0.60) 

$ (0.55) 

$ 0.05 
__ ~J 
$ (0.54) 

-~ 
$ (4,316) 
----'I,g;!) 
$ (11,467) 

38,823 

38,823 

$ (0.11) 
(0.19) 

$ (0.30) 

$ (0.11 ) 
_(0.19) 

$ (0.30) 

Property and equipment acquired under capital leases totaled $1 ,979, $1,725, and $3,761 during the 
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. 

As partial consideration for our 2007 divestitures, we received publicly trade common stock in two of the 
acquiring companies valued at approximately $1 ,000 at the time of January 2007 closing on the transactions. 

Interest paid totaled $1,002, $607, and $843 during the years ended December 31,2007,2006, and 2005, 
respectively. 

5. Unbllled Receivables 

Unbilled receivables consist of the excess of revenue earned in accordance wHh generally accepted 
accounting principles over the amounts billable at contract milestones. Substantially all unbilled receivables 
are expected to be billed and collected wHhin twelve months. 
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6. Inventory 

Inventory consisted of the following at December 31: 

Component parts 
Finished goods 
Total inventory at year end 

7. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted olthe following at December 31 : 

Computer equipment 
Computer software 
Furniture and fixtures 
Leasehold Improvements 
Land 
Vehicles 

Total property and equipment at cost at year end 
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net property and equipment at year end 

8. Acquired Intangible Assets and Capitalized Software Development Costs 

$ 

$ 

2007 

$ 2,670 
---~~ 
$ 5,373 

2007 

24,393 
16,360 

2,558 
2,760 
1,000 

107 
47,178 

(35,969) 

11,209 

2006 

$ 2,942 
2,351 

$ 5,293 

2006 
----

$ 31,320 
16,370 

2,159 
2,491 
1,000 

--~ 
53,447 

(40,594) 

$ 12,853 

Our acquired intangible assets and capitalized software development costs consisted of the following: 

Acquired Intangible assets: 
Customer Usts 
Trademarks & Patents 

Software development costs, 
including acquired technology 

Total 

Estimated Mure amortization expense: 
Year ending December 31, 2008 
Year ending December 31, 2009 
Year ending December 31.2010 
Year ending December 31, 2011 
Year ending December 31,2012 
Thereafter 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

$ 606 
612 

9,189 

$ 10,407 

December 31, 2007 

Accumulated 
~m_~rtJzatlon 

$ 405 
104 

4,783 

$ 5,292 

F-16 

$ 201 
508 

4,406 

$ 5,115 

-= __ "o""ece"",n,ber,-,3"1,,, 2006 ..... "--__ _ 
Gross 

Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortl~on Not 

$ 606 $ 290 $ 316 
612 72 540 

1.664 3,262 4,4og 

$ 8,882 $ 3,624 $ 5,258 

$ 2,103 
$ 1,509 
$ 452 
$ 452 
$ 251 
$ 348 
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We routinely update our estimates of the recoverability of the software products that have been 
capHalized. Management uses these estimates as the basis for evaluating the carrying values and remaining 
useful lives of the respective assets. 

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

Our accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Total accounts payable and accrued expenses at year end 

December 31, 2007 

$ 

$ 

5,848 
6,611 

12,459 

December 31! ~ 

$ 4,388 
6,033 

$ 10,421 

Accrued expenses consist primarily of costs incurred for which we have not yet been invoiced, accrued 
sales taxes, and amounts due to our E9·1-1 customers that we have billed and collected from regulating 
agencies on their behalf under cost recovery arrangements. 

10. Line of Credit 

We have maintained a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank since 2003. In June 2007, we 
amended the agreement to extend our line of credit and decrease the cost of borrowing. Under the amended 
agreement, the availability of the line was extended to June 2010, and the borrowing rate decreased from 
prime plus 1.25% to the bank's prime rate which was 7.25% per annum at December 31,2007. Our maximum 
borrowing availability remained the same at $22,000. Borrowings at any time are IimHed to an amount based 
principally on accounts receivable levels and a working capital ratiO, each as defined in the amended line of 
credit agreement. The line of credit available is also reduced by the amounts of letters of credH outstanding 
which totaled $2,921 at December 31, 2007. 

Our amended line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a 
minimum adjusted quick ratio and a minimum IiquidHy ratio as well as other restrictive covenants including, 
among others, restrictions on our abilHy to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake 
actions outside the ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee 
debt, distribute dividends, and repurchase our stock, and maintenance of a minimum tangible nat worth. The 
agreement also contains a subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, 
operations, or financial condition of our Company occur, or (ii) no material impairment of the prospect of 
repayment of any portion of the borrowings; or (iii) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders 
security interests in the collateral of the bank credH agreement. 

As of December 31 , 2007, we were in compliance with the covenants related to our line of credit. We 
believe that the Company will continue to comply with its restrictive covenants. If our performance does not 
result in compliance with any of our restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing 
arrangements, but there can be no assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under 
its agreement wHh us, including declaring all outstanding debt due and payable. 

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006 we had no borrowings outstanding under the line of credit and we had 
approximately $11 ,000 and $9,000, respectively, of unused borrowing availability under this line. 
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Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31 : 

Note payable dated June 2007 due July 1,2012 and bearing interest at prime rate plus 0.25% 
per annum, See further description 

Note payable dated March 10. 2006 refinanced June 2007 
Note payable dated December 28, 2006, due December 28, 2009, and bearing interest at 

10.35% per annum, The note requires monthly Installments of principal and interest of $162 
through December 28, 2009. This note is secured by accounts receivable of $590 at 
December 31, 2007 

Note payable dated April 17. 2006, paid in full April 17. 2007, 
Other 

Total long term debt 
Less: current portion 

Non current portion of long term debt 

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2007 are as follows: 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

Total 

2007 
----

$ 9,167 

3,501 

12,669 
_@,~1) 

$ 9,008 

2006 

$ 7,504 

5,000 
657 

5 
13.166 
(2,160) 

$ 11.006 

$ 3,661 
3,841 
2,000 
2,000 
~ 
$ 12,669 

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10,000 of March 2006 secured notes with a five year bank term loan. 
The borrowing rate under the new term loan was the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (7.5% at 
December 31, 2007) and payments are due in equal monthly installments of $167 plus interest. In March 
2006, we issued (i) $10,000 of secured notes due March 10, 2009, w~h cash interest at 14% per annum, and 
(ii) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at an exercise 
price of $2.40 per share expiring March 10, 2009. The resuRing carrying value olthe debt at issuance was 
$6,500, net of the original discount of $3,500 which was being amortized to interest expense over its 
three-year term using the effective interest method, yielding an effective interest rate of 15.2%. The remaining 
unamortized debt discount and issuance expenses of $2.4 million were written off in the second quarter of 
2007 as a resuR of early retirement olthe March 2006 note. 
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We lease certain equipment under capital leases. Property and equipment included the following amounts 
for capital leases at December 31: 

Computer equipment 
Computer software 
Furniture and fixtures 
Leasehold Improvements 

Total equipment under capital lease at cost 
Less: accumulated amortization 

Net property and equipment under capital leases 

2007 
---

$ 5,685 
1,474 

237 
--~ 

7,402 
(3,824) 

$ 3,578 

2006 

$ 9,925 
2,072 

237 
46 

12,280 
(7,268) 

$ 5,012 

CapHalleases are collateralized by the leased assets. Our capHalleases generally contain provisions 
whereby we can purchase the equipment at the end of the lease for the current fair market value, capped at 
18.5% of the original purchase price. Amortization of leased assets is included in depreciation and 
amortization expense. 

Future minimum payments under capHallease obligations consisted olthe following at December 31, 
2007: 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less: amounts representing interest 

Present value of net minimum lease payments (Including current portion of $1,783) 

13. Common Stock 

$ 1,972 
1,151 

412 
117 
108 

3,760 
~ 
$ 3,432 

Our Class A common stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share of stock held for all matters 
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Our Class B stockholders are entitled to three votes for each share 
owned. 

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The fair values of our cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, and long-term debt approximate 
their respective carrying values as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. The carrying amounts of cash and cash 
equivalents, note receivable, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value because of 
the short maturity of these instruments. 

15. Income Taxes 

During the years ended December 31, 2007, and 2006, respectively, we did not record either a current or 
deferred tax provision due to our current loss position and uncertainty regarding the realization of our net 
deferred tax assets. 
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Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were: 

Deferred tax assets: 
Net operating loss carryforward 
Net deferred tax assets from discontinued operations 
Research and development tax credit 
Stock compensation expense 
Depreciation and amortization 
Reserves and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 
Charitable contributions 

Total deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

capitalized software development costs 
Other 

Total deferred tax liabilities 
Net deferred tax asset 

Valuation allowance for net deferred tax asset 
Net deferred tax asset recognized in the consolidated balance sheets 

2007 _ .. _-

$ 39,564 
3,656 
2,330 
1,526 
1,035 

958 
813 
62 

49,944 

(1,202) 
____ (4) 

_ (1,206) 
48,738 
(48,738) 

$ 

2006 
---

$ 40,174 
6,289 
2,753 

231 
1,123 
1,047 

396 
92 

_52,105 

(775) 
__ (6) 

(781) 
51,324 
(51,324) 

$ 

At December 31,2007, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of 
approximately $107 million, which includes $31.2 million, acquired upon the acquisnion of Xypoint in 2001. 
The net operating loss carryforwards acquired in connection with the purchase of Xypoint Corporation in 2001 
will begin to expire in 2011. The remaining net operating loss carryforwards will expire from 20t 9 through 
2026. 

The timing and manner in which we may utilize the net operating loss carryforwards in Mure tax years will 
be limned by the amounts and timing of future taxable income and by the application of the ownership change 
rules under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Utilization of the Xypoint net operating losses are 
limned as a resuR of ownership changes. As of December 31,2007, the product olthe remaining Xypoint net 
operating loss carrryforward period in comparison to the annual limn&tion amount, resuHs in excess acquired 
tax attributes which will expire prior to utilization. Therefore, our deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2007 
were reduced for the portion of the Xypoint net operating loss totaling, $3,566, as well as a portion of the 
research and development tax credn totaling $557, which cannot be used before they expire. 

The remaining U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards may become subject to limn&tions under the 
Internal Revenue Code as well. We have state net operating loss carryforwards available which expire 
through 2026, utilization of which will be limned in a manner similar to the federal net operating loss 
carryforwards. At December 31,2007, $5 million of our deferred deductions related to stock options 
exercises. To the extent that carryforwards, when realized, relate to stock option deductions, the resulting 
benefits will be credited to stockholders' equity. We have established a full valuation allowance with respect to 
these federal and state loss carryforwards and other net deferred tax assets due to uncertainties surrounding 
their realization. 
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The reconciliation of the reported income tax benefit to the amount that would result by applying the 
U.S. federal statutory rate of 34% to loss from continuing operations for the year ended December 31 is as 
follows: 

Income tax (benefit) at statutory rate 
Expired Xypoint tax attributes as described above 
Non deductible items 
Change In valuation allowances 
Non deductible stock compensation expense 
Research and development tax credit 
Change in state apportionment tax rates on deferred assets/liabilities 
State tax (benefd) 
Other 

Total 

16. Employee Benefit Plan 

2007 

$ (364) 
1,894 

255 
(887) 
(705) 
(130) 

(41) 
(8) 

_(14) 

$ 

2006 2005 ---

$ 653 $ (1,467) 

55 48 
(2,241) 2,161 

689 
(43) (70) 

807 (537) 
52 (135) 

--~ 
$ $ 

The Company maintains a 401 (k) plan covering defined employees who meet established eligibility 
requirements. Under the provisions of plan, the Company may contribute a discretionary match. The plan may 
also contribute a non-elective contribution determined by the Company. For 2007, the Company matched 
35% of employee deferrals. The Company contribution was $0.6 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the 
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 respectively. 

17. Stock·based Compensation Plans 

We maintain two stock-based compensation plans: a stock incentive plan, and an employee stock 
purchase plan. 
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Stock Incentive Plan. We maintain a stock incentive plan that is administered by our Compensation 
Committee of our Board of Directors. Options granted under the plan vest over periods ranging from one to 
five years and expire 10 years from the date of grant. Under the principal share-based compensation plans, 
the Company may grant certain employees, directors and consultants options to purchase common stock, 
stock appreciation rights and restricted stock units. Options are rights to purchase common stock of the 
Company at the fair market value on the date of the grant. Stock appreciation rights are equity settled 
share-based compensation arrangements whereby the number of shares that will ultimately be issued is 
based upon the appreciation of the Company's common stock and the number of awards granted to an 
individual. Restricted stock units are equity settled share-based compensation arrangements of a number of 
share of the Company's common stock. Restricted stock unit holders do not have voting rights until the 
restrictions lapse. A summary of our stock option activity and related information consists of the following for 
the years ended December 31 (all share amounts in thousands): 

2007 2006 2005 
Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Average Average Average 

Number of exercise Numbarof exercise Number of exercise 
Options Price ----- Optlon~_ Price ~tlons Price 

Outstanding, beginning of year 11,622 $ 3.62 9,793 $ 3.66 8,650 $ 4.25 
Granted 2,537 3.69 2,908 2.42 2,766 2.55 
Exercised (1,347) 2.58 (199) 1.75 (291) 1.08 
Forfened (1,668) 4.07 ___ (880) 3.26 (IL~ 4.30 
Outstanding, end of year 11,144 $ 3.69 11,622 $ 3.62 9,793 $ 3.66 

Exercisable, at end of year 6,515 $ 4.14 6,823 $ 4.33 5,997 $ 4.55 

Vested and expected to vest. at 
end afyear 7,510 $ 3.69 8,179 $ 3.62 7,002 $ 3.66 

Estimated weighted-average grant-
date fair value of options granted 
during the year $ 3.69 $ 2.42 $ 2.06 

Weighted-average remaining 
contractual 

life of options outstanding at end of 
year 6.6 ~ears 7.0 },:ears 7.3 years 

Exercise prices for options outstanding at December 31, 2007 ranged from $0.01 to $26.05 as follows (all 
share amounts in thousands): 

Weighted-Average 
Weighted-Average Remaining Weighted-Average 

exercise Prices Contractual Llle exercise Prices 
Options 01 Options 01 Options Options 01 Options 

exercise Prices Outstanding Outstandl~ Qutstandlng l\Iears) exercisable exercisable 

$0.01 - $2.61 4,071 $ 2.31 7.07 1,983 $ 2.21 
$2.61 - $5.21 4,848 $ 3.42 6.67 2,307 $ 3.23 
$5.21 - $7.82 2,195 $ 6.75 5.58 2,195 $ 6.75 
$7.82 - $26.05 30 $ 11.07 5.01 30 $ 11.07 
Total end of year 11,144 6,515 
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In calculating the fair value of our stock options using Black-Scholes for the years ended December 31, 
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, our assumptions were as follows: 

Expected I~e (in years) 
Rlsk~free interest rate(%) 
Volatility(%) 
Dividend yield(%) 

For the Years Ended 
December 31, 

2007 ~_ 

5.5 5.5 
4.24% - 4.90% 4.56"" 
68.1% - 83% 78% 

0% 0% 

2005 

5.5 
4.25% 
105% 
0% 

Prior to our inijial public offering in 2000, we granted incentive stock options to employees and directors to 
purchase 885,983 shares of Class A Common Stock. The options were granted at an exercise price less than 
the estimated market value of Class A Common Stock at the date of grant. Net loss, as reported, includes 
$123 of non-cash stock compensation expense related to these grants for the year-ended December 31, 
2005. These options had fully vested as of December 31, 2005, and accordingly we will not recognize any 
future expense related to these options. 

For the years ended December 31,2007,2006, and 2005, the Company granted a total of 89,600,22,025, 
and 14,816 of restricted shares of Class A Common Stock to directors and certain key executives. The 
restrictions expired at the end of one year for directors and expire in annual increments over three years for 
executives conditional on continued employment. The fair value of the restricted stock on the date of issuance 
is recognized as non-cash stock compensation expense over the period over which the restrictions expire. 
We recognized $328, $244, and $597 of non-cash stock compensation expense related to these grants for 
the years ended December 31,2007,2006, and 2005, respectively. We expect to record future stock 
compensation expense of $55 as a resutt of these restricted stock grants that will be recognized over the 
remaining vesting periods. 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. We have an employee stock purchase plan (the Plan) that gives all 
employees an opportunity to purchase shares of our Class A Common Stock. The Plan allows for the 
purchase of 1,384,932 shares of our Class A Common Stock at a discount of 15% of the fair market value. 
The discount of 15% is calculated based on the average daily share price on either the first or the last day of 
each quarterly enrollment period, whichever date is more favorable to the employee. Option periods are three 
months in duration. As of December 31,2007,958,821 shares of Class A Common Stock have been issued 
under the Plan. Compensation expense relating to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is not material. 

As of December 31, 2007, our total shares of Class A Common Stock reserved for future issuance is 
comprised of: 

Stock incentive plan 
Warrants (see Note 11) 
Employee stock purchase plan 

Total shares restricted for future use 
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(In thousands) 

7,002 
1,750 

426 
9,178 
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Composition of non-cash stock compensation expense was as follows: 
Direct costs of revenue 
Research and development expense 
Sales and marketing expense 

General and administrative expense 
Total non-cash stock compensation expense 

lB. Operating Leases 

$ 2,080 
667 
628 

.~ 
$ 4,333 

$ 1,509 $ 16 
558 11 
326 18 
723 675 

$ 3,116 $ 720 

We lease certain office space and equipment under non·cancelable operating leases that expire on 
various dates through 2015. Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases with inmal 
terms of one year or more consisted of the following at December 31, 2007: 

2008 
2009 - 2010 
2011 -2012 
Beyond 

$ 3,428 
4,369 
1,593 

891 

$ 10,278 

Our leases include our offices in Annapolis, Maryland under a lease expiring in March 2008, a second 
facility in Annapolis under a lease expiring in April 200B, a facility in Seattle, Washington under a lease 
expiring in September 2010, a facility in Oakland, California under a lease expiring August 2009, and a facility 
in Tampa, Florida under a lease expiring in December 2009 and a production facility in Tampa, Florida under 
a lease expiring in December 2015. The Annapolis facilmes are utilized for executive and administrative 
offices, as well as portions of our Commercial and Government Segments. We are currently negotiating 
extension of our lease terms for our Annapolis facimies. The Seattle and Oakland facilmes are utilized by our 
Commercial Segment and the Tampa facility is utilized by our Government Segment. Future payments on all 
of our leases are estimated based on Mure payments including the minimum Mure rent escalations, n any, 
stipulated in the respective agreements. 

Rent expense for continuing operations was $3,823, $3,603, and $3,480 for the years ended 
December 31,2007,2006, and 2005, respectively. 

19. Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers 

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily 
of accounts receivable and unbilled receivables. Those customers that comprised 10% or more of our 
revenues, accounts receivable, and unbilled receivables from continuing operations are summarized in the 
following tables. 

Customer 

U.S. Government 
Customer A 

F-24 

% of Total Revenues For 
the Year Endad 
December 31, 

Segment 2007 2006 2005 

Government 37% 25% 17% 
Commercial 20% 20% 17% 
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As of Oecemb~r ~~ ~ 2007 As of December 31,2006 
Accounts Unbllled Accounts Unbllled 

Customer Receivable Receivables Receivable Receivables 
--

U.S. Government 40% 66% 24% 36% 
Customer A <10% <10% <10% <10% 
Customer B 11% <10% 11% <10% 

As of December 31,2007, our total exposure to credit risk was $23,689 based on the amount due to us by 
the above customers. As of December 31,2006 and 2005, our exposure to such risks was $12,645 and 
$15,598 respectively. We did not experience significant losses from amounts due to us by any customers for 
the year ended December 31,2007. 

20. Business and Geographic Segment Information 

Our two reporting segments are the Commercial Segment and the Government Segment. 

Our Commercial Segment products and services enable wireless carriers to deliver short text messages, 
location information, Internet content, and other enhanced communication services to and from wireless 
phones. Our Commercial Segment also provides E9·1·1 services, commerciallocatlon·based services, 
inter·carrier text message distribution services, and carrier technology on a hosted, or service bureau, basis. 
We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic 
application. 

Our Government Segment designs, assembles, sells and maintains data network communic2.tion systems, 
including our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems. We also own and operate secure sateliHe 
teleport facilities, resell access to sateliHe airtime (known as space segment), and provide communication 
systems integration, information technology services, and software systems and services to the 
U.S. Department of Defense and other government customers. 

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross profit. We do not maintain information 
regarding segment assets. Accordingly, asset Information by reportable segment is not presented. 

For the years ended December 31,2007,2006, and 2005, respectively, our revenues include 
approximately $5,551, $7,349, and $6,874 of revenues generated from customers outside ofthe United 
States. 

F·25 
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The following table sets forth results for our reportable segments as of December 31,2007. All revenues 
reported below are from external customers. A reconciliation of segment gross profit to net loss for the 
respective periods is also included below: 

Year ended Da~mbe-:. 3_1, 
2007 _______ 2<1116 

Camm. Gvrnt 

Revenue 
Services $ 58,793 $ 29,269 
Systems 16,521 _~$),§E!~ 

Total revenue __ ?~-L~!~ 68,854 

Direct coate of revenue 
Direct cost of services 29,_ 22,815 
Direct cost of systems 5.024 32,882 

Total Direct Costs 34.370 _~!?&~Z 
Gross proftt 

Services gross profit 29,447 6,454 
Systems gross profit 11,497 __ ~703 

Total Gross Profit $ 40,944 $ 13.157 

Total segment gross profit 
Research and development expense 
Sales and marketing expense 
General and administrative expense 

__ T~_ Camm. 

$ 88,062 $ 59,741 
~~ 17,219 

144,168 76,960 

52,161 31,409 
__ ;g906 5,211 

90,{]6_7 ~,~20 

35,901 28,332 
18.200 12,008 

$ 54,101 $ 40,340 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 
Interest expense 

Gvmt 

$ 28,639 
19,337 

47,976 

21,131 
12,672 

-~,~ 

7,508 
6,665 

$ 14,173 

Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance expenses, Including $2,458 
wrUe·off in 2007 

Other income/(expense). net 

Income (Loss) from continuing operations 
Loss from discontinued operations 

Nat loss 
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2005 
Total Comm. Gvmt 

$ 88,380 $ 54.198 $ 20.774 
36,556 11.888 15.513 

124.936 65,866 36.287 

52,540 25,885 13,345 
17,883 ~ 12,009 

_ 70,423 _ 31,595 25,354 

35,840 28,313 7,_ 
18,673 ~ 3,504 

$ 54,513 $ 34,271 $ 10,933 

2007 2006 

$ 54,101 $ 54,513 
(13,072) (12,586) 
(11,917) (11,713) 
(19,334) (16,959) 
(6,200) (7,956) 

(148) (147) 
(1,776) (1,751) 

(3,176) (1,447) 
508 22 

(1,014) 1,976 
._(275) u (23,671) 

$ (1,289) $ (21,695) 

Total 

$ 74,972 
27,181 

102,153 

39,230 
_ 17,719 

56,~ 

35,742 
9,462 

$ 45,204 

2005 

$ 45,204 
(13,863) 
(10,535) 
(15,044) 
(8,625) 

(177) 
(702) 

(470) 
(104) 

(4,316) 
__ (7,151) 

$ (11,487) 
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21. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) 

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31 , 2007 
and 2006. The quarterly information has not been audited, but in our opinion, includes all normal recurring 
adjustments, which are, in the opinion of the Management, necessary for fair statement of the results of the 
interim periods. 

2007 
Throe Months Ended 

(unaudited) 
March 31 June 30 SeiJIember :10 Decembar31 

Revenue $ 34,119 $ 35,336 $ 37,635 $ 37,078 
Gross profit $ 14,295 $ 10,681 $ 14,138 $ 14,987 
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 767 $ (5,993) $ 1,716 $ 2,498 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (124) -~ 54 (61) 
Net income (loss) $ 643 $ (6,138) $ 1,770 $ 2,437 
Earnings per share - basic from continuing operations $ 0.02 $ (0.15) $ 0.04 $ 0.06 
Loss per share - basic from discontinued operations $ (O.OO) $ (0.00) L_ 0.00 $ (0.00) 
Net loss per share - basic $ 0.02 $ (0.15) $ 0.04 $ 0.06 
Earnings per share - diluted from continuing 

operations $ 0.02 $ (0.15) $ 0.04 $ 0.06 
Income (loss) per share - diluted from discontinued 

operations $ __ (Q,OQ) L (0.00) $ 0.00 $ (Q,QQ) 
Net income (loss) per share - diluted $ 0.02 $ (0.15) $ 0.04 $ 0.06 

2006 
Throe Months Ended 

(unaudited) 
March 31 June 30 !le"tel11ber 30 cecember31 

Revenue $ 31,686 $ 31,943 $ 31,810 $ 30,496 
Gross profit $ 13,562 $ 14,240 $ 13,574 $ 13,136 
Income from continuing operations $ 342 $ 759 $ 761 $ 111 
Loss from discontinued operations (2,054) (2,314) (14,510) J1293) 
Net loss $ (1,712) $ (1,555) $ (13,749) $ (4,682) 
Earnings per share - basic from continuing operations $ 0.01 $ 0.02 $ 0.02 $ 0.00 
Loss per share - basic from discontinued operations $_(0.05) $ (0.06) $ {0.3Il L (01m 
Net loss per share - basic $ (0.04) $ (0.04) $ (0.35) $ (0.12) 
Earnings per share - diluted from continuing 

operations $ 0.01 $ 0.02 $ 0.02 $ 0.00 
Loss per share - diluted from discontinued operations L-<9.Q§) $ (0.06) L_ _. (0.37) $ (0.11) 
Net loss per share - diluted $ (0.04) $ (0.04) $ (0.35) $ (0.11) 
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22. Commitments and Contingencies 

In October 2006, two former shareholders of Xypoint Corporation sued the former officers and directors of 
that corporation for breach of fiduciary duty and violation of certain Washington state securities and consumer 
protection acts when they approved, and recommended that shareholders approve the merger of Xypoint into 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. The plaintiffs requested unspecified damages. The merger agreement 
from 2001 provided that we would indemnify the officers and directors of Xypoint for a period of six years after 
the merger (ending January 2007) for their actions in approving the merger. In December 2006, the complaint 
was amended to include TCS as a defendant, as the successor-in-interest to Xypoint Corporation and 
Windward Acquisition Corporation (our acquisnion subsidiary), both extinguished corporations. On May 7, 
2007, the Honorable Jeffrey M. Ramsdell of the King County Superior Court (Washington) entered an order 
dismissing the complaint, with prejudice. On October 19, 2007, the plaintiffs filed an appeal olthe dismissal 
order wnh the Washington Court of Appeals. We have purchased Directors and Officers insurance policies to 
cover claims against the former officers and directors of Xypoint and us, and believe that one or both olthose 
insurance policies may cover some or all of the costs of this lawsuit. We intend to continue to defend the 
appeal vigorously. Although we believe a material loss is remote, we can make no assurances that the 
outcome will be favorable to us or that the insurance poliCies will be sufficient to cover the costs incurred or 
any judgment amounts that may resutt. 

On July 12, 2006, we filed suit in the US District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against Mobile 
365 (now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement related 
to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only 
Experience, issued to the Company. We resolved the matter wnh regard to WiderThan Americas, and during 
the second quarter of 2007 we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365 infringed the claims of our 
patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $1 0 million for past damages and a 
12% royaRy. The jury also found Sybase 365's infringement willful and upheld the validity of the patent. The 
jury's findings remain subject to post trial motions. After the judge rules on the post trial motions, either side 
may appeal to the US Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. There can be no assurances to what extent the 
matter will continue to be successful, if at all. Additionally, we could be subject to counter claims. 

In November 2001 , a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers 
and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial public offering (the 
"Underwrners"): Highstein v. Telecommunication Systems, Inc., eta/., Unned States District Court for the 
Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of 
damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our common stock 
during the period August 8, 2000 through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters 
agreed to allocate common stock offered for sale in our innial public offering to certain purchasers in 
exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to make 
additional purchases of common stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs allege that 
all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act, and that the underwriters violated 
Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims against us 
of violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed wnh the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. We will continue 
to defend the lawsuit vigorously. On February 15, 2005, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily 
approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs, all issuer defendants and their insurers, provided 
that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar order set forth in the settlement 
agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar order, and on August 31 , 
2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the settlement. On December 5, 2006, the Unned 
States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the District Court's certification of the class of 
plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims that would be settled in the settlement against the underwriter 
defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing En Banc with the Second Circuit on 
January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision, and have informed the 
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District Court that they would like to be heard by the District Court as to whether the settlement may still be 
approved even if the decision of the Court of Appeals is not reversed. The District Court indicated that it would 
defer consideration of final approval of the settlement pending plaintiffs' request for further appellate review. 
We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the settlement has received final approval or the matter is 
resolved otherwise. More than 300 other companies have been named in nearly identical lawsuits that have 
been filed by some of the same law firms that represent the plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us, and we believe 
that the majority of those companies will participate in the same settlement if approved. 

We are subject to certain litigation, claims and assessments which occur in the normal course of business. 
Based on consultation with our legal counsel, management is of the opinion that such matters, when 
resolved, will not have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash 
flows. 

23. Related Party Transactions 

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of 
relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Executive 
Officer owns a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a 
member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is 
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at 
the sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable 
to us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable 
to us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory 
restrictions apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may 
become available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive 
agreement at this new development site. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant 
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

By: lsi MAURICE B. TOSE 
Maurice B. T ose 

Chief Executive Officer, President and 
Chairman of the Board 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securijies Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below 
by the following persons on behalf olthe registrant and in the capacijies and on the dates indicated. The 
undersigned hereby constitute and appoint Maurice B. Tose, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. and Bruce A. Whije, and 
each of them, their true and lawful agents and attorneys-in-fact wHh full power and authorijy in said agents 
and attorneys-in-fact, and in anyone or more of them, to sign for the undersigned and in their respective 
names as directors and officers of TeleCommunication Systems, any amendment or supplement hereto. The 
undersigned hereby confirm all acts taken by such agents and attorneys-in-fact, and anyone or more of them, 
as herein authorized 

Name TItle Date 

/5/ MAURICE B. TOSE Chief Executive Officer, President and March 5, 
Maurice B. Tose Chairman of the Board (Principal Executive 2008 

Officer) 
/5/ THOMAS M. BRANDT, JR. Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice March 5, 

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. President (Principal Financial Officer) 2008 
lsi JAMES M. BETHMANN Director March 5, 

James M. Bethmann 2008 
lsi CLYDE A. HEINTZELMAN Director March 5, 

Clyde A. Heintzelman 2008 
lsi RICHARD A. KOZAK Director March 5, 

Richard A. Kozak 2008 
lsi WEUDDN H. LATHAM Director March 5, 

Weldon H. Latham 2008 
lsi BYRON F. MARCHANT Director March 5, 

Byron F. Marchant 2008 
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~escrlptlon 

4.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly 
Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004) 

4.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws. (Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on 
Form to·Q tor the quarter ended June 30,2004) 

4.3 Form of Class A Common Stock certificate. (Incorporated by reference to the company's Registration 
Statement on Form S· t (No. 333-35522)) 

4.5 Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement for each of the 
investors party to the Securities Purchase Agreement dated January 13, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to 
the company's Current Report on Form 8-K flied on January 23, 2004) 

4.6 Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the company and the Purchasers named 
therein (Incorporated by reference to the company's Annual Report on Form 10·K, as amended, for the year 
ended December 31 , 2005) 

4.7 Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 
2006 to each of the Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to the company's Annual Report 
on Form to·K, as amended, for the year ended December 31,2005) 

4.8 Notes issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 to each of the Purchasers 
named therein (Incorporated by reference to the company's Annual Report on Form 10·K, as amended, for 
the year ended December 3t, 2005) 

4.9 Registration Rights Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the company and the Investors named 
therein (Incorporated by reference to the company's Annual Report on Form 10·K, as amended, for the year 
ended December 31 , 2005) 

4. t 0 Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated March t 3, 2006 by and among the company, Bonanza Master 
Fund Ud., as Agent, and the Secured Parties named therein (lncorp.orated by reference to the company's 
Annual Report on Form 10·K, as amended, tor the year ended December 31, 2005) 

4.11 Subordination Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the company, Silicon Valley Bank, and the 
Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to the company's Annual Report on Form 10·K, as 
amended, for the year ended December 31 , 2005) 

10.1 West Garrett Office Building Full service Lease Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the 
company and West Garrett Joint Venture. (Incorporated by reference to the company's Registration 
Statement on Form S·1 (No. 333-35522)) 

10.2t Form of Indemnification Agreement. (Incorporated by reference to the company's Registration Statement on 
Form S·1 (No. 333·35522)) 

t 0.3t Fourth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the 
company's definitive proxy statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of stockholders as filed with the SEC on 
June 17, 2004 (No. 000·30821)) 

10.4 t First Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333· t 36072)) 

to.5t Optionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the company and Richard A. Young. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Registration Statement on Form S·1 (No. 333--35522» 

10.6t Optionee Agreement dated July 29,1998 by and between the company and Richard A. Young. (Incorporated 
by reference to the company's Registration Statement on Form S·1 (No. 333·35522)) 

10.7t Optionee Agreement dated October 1,1997 by and between the company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Registration Stalement on Form S·t (No. 333·35522)) 

10.8t Optionee Agreement dated July 29,1998 by and between the company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333·35522)) 

to.9t Optionee Agreement dated April t, 1999 by and between the company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Registration Statement on Form S·1 (No. 333-35522)) 

1 0.1 Ot 401 (k) and Profit Sharing Plan of the company dated January 1, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to the 
company's Registration Statement on Form S·4 (No. 333·51656)) 
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10.llt Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the company and Richard A. Young. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.12t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the company and Thomas M. Brandt. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.13t Employment Agreement dated February 1,2001 by and between the company and Drew A. Morin. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.14t Employment Agreement dated February 1,2001 by and between the company and TlmothyJ. Lorello. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.15* Services Integration Agreement dated January 31, 2002 by and between the company and Hutchison 3G. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Annual Report on Form 1 O-K for the year ended December 31, 
2001) 

10.16 Deed of Lease by and between Annapolis Partner, LLC and the company. (Incorporated by reference to the 
company's Annual Report on Form 1 O·K for the year ended December 31, 2002) 

10.17t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.18t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.19t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.20t Restricted stock award certWlcate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30,2003) 

10.21 t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon H. latham. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Fonm 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.22t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.23t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.24t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Bryon F. Marchant. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.25t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarte~y Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30,2003) 

10.26t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.27t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tose. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.28t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tose. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Fonm 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30,2003) 

10.29t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.30t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30,2003) 

10.31 t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.32t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 
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Exhibit 
Numbers Description 

10.33 

10.34 

10.35 

10.36t 

10.37 

10.38 

10.39 

10.40 

10.48 

10.47t 
10.4Bt 
10.49t 
12.1 
21.1 
23.1 
23.2 
31.1 

31.2 

32.1 

32.2 

99.01 

Registration Rights Agreement dated as 01 December 18, 2003 by and among the company and the 
investors party to the 2003 SPA. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibn 10 to the company's Current Report on 
Fonn 8-K dated December 18, 2003) 
Trademark License Agreement by and among Aether, TSYS and the company dated as of January 13, 2004. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Current Report on Form B-K flied on January 23, 2004) 
Registration Rights Agreement by and between the company and Aether dated as of January 13, 2004. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Current Report on Fonn 8-K flied on January 23, 2004) 
Amended and Restated Loan and Securtty Agreement by and between the company and Silicon Valley Bank. 
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2004) 
Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Annual Report on Fonn 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31,2005) 
Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31 , 2005) 
Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon F. Latham (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Annual Report on Fonn 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31,2005) 
Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Byron F. Marchant (Incorporated by reference to the company's 
Annual Report on Fonn 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31,2005) 
Second Amended and Restated Loan and Securtty Agreement by and between the Company and Silicon 
Valley Bank (Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended September 30, 2005) 
Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement 
Fonn of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement 
Fonn of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement 
Supplemental Financial Statement Schedule II 
Subsidiaries of the Registrant 
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP 
Consent of James Cowper 
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 
Certnication pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 
Report of Independent Auditors~ James Cowper 

t Management contract, compensatory plans or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to 
Item 15(a)(3) of Form 10-K. 

:j: Confidential treatment has been for certain portions of this Exhibit pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which portions have been omitted and filed separately with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 
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